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Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of the
Commonwealth Financing Authority
(Component Unit of Commonwealth of Pennsylvania)

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of the Commonwealth Financing
Authority (“Authority”) as of June 30, 2006, and the related statements of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net assets and cash flows for the period April 1, 2004 (date of formation) through
Tune 30, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the auditf to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies the financial statements
present only financial information about the Commonwealth Financing Authority and are not
intended to present fairly the financial position of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the
results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary and similar trust fund types in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ametica.

The Authority is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ("Commonwealih™).
As disclosed in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the financial statements,
the Authority has extensive transactions and relationships with certain Commonwealth affiliated
agencies. The financial position and results of operations of the Authority may not be indicative
of that which would have been obtained had the Authority operated independently.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly the financial position of
the Authority, and the results of its operations and cash flows in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

H LB International

Offices in 15 states and Washington, DC
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 21, 2006 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit,

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis as referenced in the table of contents is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplemental information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
cerfain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

%WALA

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 21, 2006
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2006

The Commonwealth Financing Authority, hereafter referred to as the “Authority,” is pleased to
present its financial statements developed in compliance with Statement of Governmental
Accounting Standard No. 34, entitled “Basic Financial Statements — Management’s Discussion
and Analysis — for State and Local Governments” (hereafter “GASB 34”), and related standards.
GASB 34 enhances information provided to the users of its financial statements. This section of
the financial reporting package presents our discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial
performance during the period April 1, 2004 (date of formation) through June 30, 2006. Please
read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements that follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
e The period ended June 30, 2006 was the initial period of the Authority’s operation.

¢ During the period ended June 30, 2006 the Authority received bond proceeds of $375.5
million to fund its operations and to provide grants, loans and loan guarantees under
established financing programs.

» During the period ended June 30, 2006, the Authority approved $245,817,102 in loans,
$28,500,000 in venture capital, $6,750,000 in loan guarantees, and $151,291,788 in
grants. The Authority’s programs support economic development and expansion within
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be
read in conjunction with, the basic audited financial statements. The MD&A represents
management’s cxamination and analysis of the Authority’s financial condition and performance.
Summary financial statement data and other management tools were used for this analysis.

The financial statements report information about the Authority using the full accrual method of
accounting, as utilized by similar business activities in the private sector. The financial
statements include a statement of net assets; a statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in
fund net assets; a statement of cash flows; and notes to the financial statements.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the Authority on a full accrual
historical cost basis, The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Authority’s
assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Over time, increases and
decreases in net assets are one indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is
improving or deteriorating.

While the Statement of Net Assets provides information about the nature and amount of
resources and obligations at year-end, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Assets presents the results of the business-type activities over the course of the fiscal year and
information as to how the net assets changed during the year, All changes in net assets are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2006

timing of the related cash flows. This statement also provides certain information about the
Authority’s recovery of its costs.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from
operational, financing, and investing activities, This statement presents cash receipts and cash
disbursement information without consideration of the earnings event when an obligation arises,
or depreciation of capital assets.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that
are essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes
present information about the Authority’s accounting pelicies, significant account balances and
activities, long-term debt and subsequent events, if any.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

This is the first year that the Authority is presenting its financial statements; it has no prior years
to provide comparative data. In future years when prior year information is available, a
comparative analysis of financial data will be included. Financial statements and other selected
information serve as the key financial data and indicators for management, monitoring and
planning.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2006

Current assets ‘ $ 321,187,709
Long-term assets 38.482.356
Total assets 359,670,065
Current liabilities $ 13,551,143
Long-term liabilities 369,252,955
Total Habilities 382,804,098

Net assets

Unrestricted (deficit) (23.134.033)
Total net assets 23,134,033

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 44, NO. 11, MARCH 15, 2014
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2006

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Period Ended

June 30, 2006
Operating revenues $ 5,472,601
Operating expenses (9,821,668)
Provision for loan losses : (808,226)
Nonoperating revenues/(expenses) - net (17.976.,740)
Increase in net assets $_(23,134,033)

As shown in the table above, operating revenues consist mostly of interest earnings.
Nonoperating revenues and expenses consist mainly of a Transfer fo the Commonwealth for the
Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund (MELF) program ($15 million).

Long-Term Debt

During the current audit period, the Authority issued two revenue bonds totaling $375 million to
provide funds for loan disbursements, investments In venture capital and grant expenditures.
This is the first indebtness incurred by the Authority, In addition, the Authority entered into a
service agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for the payment of the annual debt
service through an annual appropriation by the Commonwealth. However, there is no assurance
that there will be sufficient funds appropriated annually by the Commonwealth.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the
money it receives, If you have questions about this report or need additional information,
contact the Commonwealth Financing Authority, 400 North Street, Fourth Floor, Harrisburg, PA
17120.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY

(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)

ASSETS
Current asscts:

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2006

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables (net):

Loans

Accrued interest
Penalties/late fees

Other assets

$ 315,911,068

997,830
55,680
728
4,222,403

Total current assets

Long-term assets:

Long-term portion of loans receivable (net)

321,187,709

38,482,356

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

$ 359,670,065

Current HLabilities:
Current portion of fong-term debt
Accrued interest payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Due to primary governments - DCED

$ 10,280,000
2,976,740
20,498

273,905

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized

bond premium

13,551,143

369,252,955

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted (deficit)

382,804,098

(23,134,033)

TOTAL NET ASSETS

$  (23,134,033)

These financial statements should be read only in connection

with the accompanying summary of significant accounting policies

and notes to financial statements.
6
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY

(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

The Period April 1, 2004 to June 30, 2006

OPERATING INCOME
Interest on loans
Interest on investments
Penalty/late fee
Commitment and application fee

Total operating income
OPERATING EXPENSE
Administrative/operating expense
Grant expense - Business in Our Sites
Grant expense - First Industries
Total operating expenses
Net operating loss before provision for loan losses
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES
Net operating loss afier provision for loan losses
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
Transfers in from primary government
Interest on bonds
Transfers to primary government - MELF
Total non-operating loss
Net loss

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD

NET ASSETS, END OF PERIOD

These financial statements should be read only in connection

$ 117,238
5,322,967
728
31,668
5,472,601
1,756,126
5,217,887
2,847,655
9,821,668
(4,349,067)
808,226
(5,157,293)
5,064,189
(8,040,929)
(15,000,000)
(17,976,740)

(23,134,033)

$ (23,134,033)

with the accompanying summary of significant accounting policies

and notes to financial statements.

7
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
The Period April 1, 2004 to June 30, 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from interest and fees on loans $ 93,226
Cash received from interest on investments 5,322,967
Cash paid for operating expenses (1,461,723)
Cash paid for grant expenses (8,065,542)
Net cash used in operating activities (4,111,072)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Principal receipt on loans 122,886
Investment in loans ) (32,911,298)
Investment in venture capital : (7,500,000)
Transfer to primary government {15,000,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (55,288,412)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from bonds payable, net 375,310,552
Commonwealth appropriation 5,064,189
Interest on bonds payable (5,064,189)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 375,310,552
NET INCREASE IN CASH 315,911,068
CASH, BEGINNING -
CASH, END OF YEAR $ 315,911,068

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS AFTER PROVISION

FOR LOAN LOSSES TO CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net operating loss after provision for loan losses $  (5,157,293)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Provision for loan losses 808,226
Effects of changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Interest receivables (55,680)
Other assets (728)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 294,403
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES $  (4,111,072)

These financial statements should be read only in connection
with the accompanying summary of significant accounting policies
and notes to financial statements.

8
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
June 30, 2006

The Commonwealth Financing Authority (““Authority”) is a body corporate and politic duly
organized by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (“Commonwealth”) incorporated under the
Public Authorities and Quasi-Public Corporations Act of 2004 (“Act”), being the Act of April 1,
2004, P.I.. 163, as amended by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority, by virtue of
the Act and its articles of incorporation, has all powers as set forth in the Act including those for
creation and retention of jobs. The purpose of the Authority is to engage in financial assistance
in the form of loans, loan guarantees, grants and private equity participating loans to promote
activities which lead to the creation and retention of jobs within the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, the establishment of economically viable Pennsylvania communities, the
development of a stable tax base within Pennsylvania Communities, the reuse of abandoned
industrial, commercial and other previously utilized sites, the promotion and commercialization
of Pennsylvania products and services and investment of private capital in Pennsylvania
communities to promote the health, safety, employment, business opportunities, economic
activity and general welfare of the people of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

The legislation creating the Authority as well as program specific guidelines establish certain
activities to be carried out by the Authority as follows:

e Business in Our Sites Program: provides financial assistance for preparation of sites for
future development,

o First Industries Program: provides financial assistance for projects related to tourism and
agriculture.

s Second Stage Loan Program: provides loan guarantees to commercial lending institutions
that make loans to life sciences, advanced technology or manufacturing businesses.

» New Pennsylvania Venture Guarantee Program: provides guarantees to venture capital
partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies which are in early-stage or
mid-stage development.

e Building Pennsylvania Program: provides loans to fund managers for investment in real
estate projects in Pennsylvania.

s TIF Guarantee Program: provides guarantees for TIF bonds or other indebtness in accordance
with the TIF Act of 1990,

» New Pennsylvania Venture Capital Investments Program: provides loans to Venture Capital
partnerships for investment in Pennsylvania Companies.

* Penn Works Program: provides grants and loans for water supply and wastewater
infrastructure within Pennsylvania.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 44, NO. 11, MARCH 15, 2014
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
June 30, 2006

REPORTING ENTITY

The Authority has adopted the provisions of Section 2100 of the Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards for the criteria used to evaluate organizations,
activities and functions that should be included in the Authority’s financial statements. The
basic criteria is the exercise of oversight responsibility over such organizations, activities and
functions. The Authority has not identified any entities which should be subject to evaluation for
inclusion in the Authority’s reporting entity.

The Commonwealth appoints the members of the Authority’s governing board. The
Commonwealth maintains the accounts and records of the Authority. In addition, the
Commonwealth employs and supervises personnel to provide administrative services, Therefore,
the Authority is considered a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The Authority’s financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability is incutred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. The Authority
applies Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations, and the
Accounting Principles Board (APB) of the Committee of Accounting Procedures issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. A
proprietary fund is used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the cost
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the Authority is determined by its
measurement focus. The transactions of the Authority are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus, With this measurement focus, all assets and all labilities
associated with the operations are included on the balance sheet. Net assets represent total assets
net of fotal liabilities.

10
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUFYHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
June 30, 2006

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash eguivalents, for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, include cash on
hand or on deposit with a maturity of three months or less.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve account for possible future loan losses. Loan losses
and recoveries of previously charged-off loans are charged or credited directly to the allowance
account. The provision for loan losses is adjusted monthly at the rate of 2% of outstanding loan
balances at the respective month end. - The provision for loan losses was based on comparison
with other Authorities of the Commonwealth with similar operations and loan portfolio.

USE OF ESTIMATES IN PREPARING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates.

BOND PREMIUM AND DISCOUNT

The difference between the cash received from bondholders at issuance and the amount due to
bondholders at maturity is recognized as bond premium or discount. Bond premium or discount
is amortized using the straight-line method over the lives of the bonds issued. Due to the recent
issuance of the bonds, no amortization was taken in the current period.

This information is an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements.
11

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 44, NO. 11, MARCH 15, 2014



NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - FINANCIAL SUPPORT

The Authority has a net asset deficit of $20,151,293 as of June 30, 2006. The Authority’s
business purpose will result in continued losses from operation due to the disbursement of grant
awards to help promote economic growth in the Commonwealth. In addition, the Authority is
committed to providing part of their bond proceeds to the Commonwealth for the Machinery and
Equipment Loan Fund (MELF) program, which contributes to the deficit in net assets.

Through a service agreement with the Authority, the Commonwealth has pledged to seck annual
appropriations to pay the Authority’s annual debt service obligations. Therefore, these factors
listed above, do not raise doubt as to the Authority’s ability to meet obligations when due.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of
June 30, 2006, the Authority’s bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

FDIC Insured $ 200,000
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank’s trust

department not in the Authority’s name 315,711,068
Total $ 315911,068

NOTE 3 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Authority provides loans, in accordance with its enabling legislation and statutory
requirements to spur economic development activity within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
The loans have amortization periods not to exceed 20 years and bear interest at rates ranging
from 1% to 8% depending on the nature of the loan and the Authority program from which the
loan was funded.

The Authority, through the New Venture Capital Investment Program, provides loans to venture
capital partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies.

At June 30, 2006 the outstanding balance of loans receivable was as foliows:

Current Long-term

Portion Portion Total
Loans receivable $ 1,018,257 §$ 31,770,155 § 32,788,412
Venture Capital Investment loans ~ 7,500,000 7,500,000
Allowance for loan losses (20,427) (787,799) (808,226)
Loan receivable - net $ 997,830 38,482 356 480,18

12
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

NOTE 4 — BONDS PAYABLE

Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $45,000,000 fixed rate, tax exempt
revenue bonds, Series A and $142,500,000 fixed rate, federacy taxable
revenue bonds, Series B in April 20006 at 4.5% - 5.6% interest only payable
semi-annually through June 1, 2026 and principal payable annually through
June 1, 2026. $ 187,500,000

Series 2005 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,500,000 fixed rate, tax exempt
revenue bonds, Series A and $125;000,000 fixed rate, federacy taxable
revenue bonds, Series B in November 2005 at 4.5% - 5.3%, interest
payable semi-annually and principal payable annually through June 1,

2025. 187,500,000
375,000,000

Less current portion (10,280,000)
Unamortized bond premium 4,532,955

Long-term debt, net of current portion
and unamortized bond premium $ 369,252,955

Bond principal requirements subsequent o June 30, 2006 are as follows:

Principal
Maturities Interest

For the Year Ended June 30,

2007 3 10,280,000 $ 21,105,925

2008 12,000,000 19,376,518

2009 12,635,000 18,744,076

2010 13,305,000 18,074,687

2011 14,015,000 17,364,080

2012-2016 82,230,000 74,663,407

2017-2021 107,225,000 49,669,202

2022-2026 123,310,000 17.877.822
Total $375,000,000 $236,875.717

13
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHOQRITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVYANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

NOTE 4 - BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The Authority, with the Commonwealth approval, issued the above noted revenue bonds to fund
the activities of the Authority. Repayments with respect to the revenue bonds are derived solely
from project revenues which are defined as annual appropriations by the Commonwealth per the
Official Statement. The Revenue Bonds described above arc limited obligations of the Authority
and are considered non-recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to bondholders beyond
amounts received by the Authority from annual appropriations to the Authority by the
Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has not pledged its full faith and credit nor the taxing
power of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision for the payment of the Authority’s
Revenue Bonds and the payments by the Commonwealth to the Authority are subject to annual
appropriation of funds for such purposes by the General Assembly and there is no assurance that
such funds will be appropriated in any fiscal year. Repayments of loans do not constitute project
revenues.

NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, through the
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED) to provide administrative and
operational support services for the Authority. The Authority employs no personnel and owns no
capital asscts; all employees performing services for the Authority are DCED employees. As
such under the memorandum of understanding, the Authority reimburses DCED for services
rendered by DCED employees to the Authority. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 the
services provided by DCED to Authority and recorded as Administrative/Operating expenses
totated $1,756,126.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, the Authority received $5,064,189 in transfers from

the Commonwealth to pay debt service with respect to the Revenue Bond. See Note 3 for details
with respect to the Revenue Bonds.

NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Authority, through various economic development programs, provided loan guarantees as
follows:

First industries loan guarantees $ 1,375,500

Tax increment financing guarantees 5,000,000

Second stage loan guarantees 375.000

Total loan guarantees $ 6,750,500
14
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The Authority has not been called upon, with respect to any loan guarantees, to make principal or
inferest payments on behalf of the ultimate borrowers. Accordingly, no liability has been
reflected in the Authority’s financial statements for loan guarantees.

Through the various Authority loan and grant programs to promote economic development
within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the Autherity has approved loans, investments in
venture capital and grants of $212,905,804 and $21,000,000 and $143,226,246, respectively,
which have not been disbursed as of June 30, 2006.

This information is an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements.
15
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ﬁ Clifton
Gunderson LLp

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Commeonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the basic financial statements of Commonwealth Financing Authority (the
Authority) as of and for the period April 1, 2004 (date of formation) through June 30, 2006 and
have issued our report thereon dated September 21, 2006. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contsined in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the intermal control that might be material weaknesses. A
material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused
by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported
to management in a separate letter dated September 21, 2006.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

16 _—
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 21, 2006
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m Clifton
Gunderson LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of the
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of the Commonwealth Financing
Authority (“Authority”) as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2007 and
2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As discussed in the Notes, the financial statements present only financial information about
the Commonwealth Financing Authority and are not intended to present fairly the financial
position of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the results of its operations and cash flows
of its proprietary and similar trust fund types in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The Authority is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ("Commonwealth").
As disclosed in Note 1 of the financial statements, the Authority has extensive transactions
and relationships with certain Commonwealth affiliated agencies. The financial position and
results of operations of the Authority may not be indicative of that which would have been
obtained had the Authority operated independently.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly the financial position of
the Authority, and the results of its operations and cash flows in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

1 .
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
Sepiember 12, 2007 on our consideration of the Autherity’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis as referenced in the table of contents is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplemental information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

%WALA

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 12, 2007
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2007 and 2006

The Commonwealth Financing Authority, hereafter referred to as the “Authority,” is pleased to
present its financial statements developed in compliance with Statement of Govermnmental
Accounting Standard No. 34, entitied “Basic Financial Statements — Management's Discussion
and Analysis — for State and Local Governments” (hereafter “GASB 34”), and related standards.
GASB 34 enhances information provided to the users of its financial statements. This section of
the financial reporting package presents our discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial
performance during the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006. Please read it in conjunction
with the Authority’s financial statements that follow this section.

FINANCIAL RIGHLIGHTS

« During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007, the Authority executed ifs third $187.5
million bond issue to fund projects approved for grants, loans, and venture capital
investments under established financing programs. Since inception, the Authority has
awarded $891 million fo assist 598 economic development projects across the
Commonwealth. This investment will leverage more than $2.7 bilion in private
investment.

« The Authority board approved an investment strategy o guide the investment of bond
proceeds and payments received frem approved loan and venture capital investment
projects.

¢ The Authority opened for business the final two of eight programs under its jurisdiction,
the Building PA Program and the Venture Guarantee Program and approved
investments and guarantees for fund managers.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be
read in conjunction with, the basic audited financial statements. The MD&A represents
management's examination and analysis of the Authority’s financial condition and performance.
Summary financial statement data and other management tools were used for this analysis.

The financial statements report information about the Authority using the full accrual method of
accounting, as utilized by similar business activities in the private sector. The financial
statements include a statement of net assets; a statement of revenues, expenses, and changes
in net assets; a statement of cash flows; and notes to the financial statements.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the Authority on a full accrual
historical cost basis. The Statement of Net Assets also presents information on all of the
Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Over time,
increases and decreases in net assets are one indicator of whether the financial position of the
Awuthority is improving or deteriorating.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2007 and 2006

While the Statement of Net Assets provides information about the nature and amount of
resources and obligations at year-end, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Assets presents the results of the business-type activities over the course of the fiscal year
and information as to how the net assets changed during the year. All changes in net assets
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of the related cash flows. This statement also provides certain information about the
Authority's recovery of its costs.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from
operational, financing, and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipts and cash
disbursement information without consideration of the earnings event when an obligation arises,
or depreciation of capital assets.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that
are essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes
present information about the Authority’s accounting policies, significant account balances and
activities, long-term debt and subsequent events, if any.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Condensed Statements of Net Assets

2007 2006

Current assets $ 343,892,109 §$ 321,187,709
Long-term assets 122,545 59¢ 38,482,356
Total assets 466 437,708 358,670,065
Current liabilities 20,890,603 13,551,143
Long-term liabilities 538,315,943 369,252 955
Total liabitities 559,206,546 382,804,008

Net assets
Unrestricted (deficit) (92,768,838) (23,134,033)
Total net assets (deficit) $ (92768,838) § (23,134.033)
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2007 and 2006

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

2007 2006
Operating revenues $ 18,048,722 § 5,472,601
Operating expenses {35,956,634) (9,821,668)
Provision for loan losses (1,774,253) (808,226)
Nonoperating expenses - net (49,952,640) (17.976,740)
Decrease in net assets $.(69,634.805) $_ (23,134,033)

As shown in the table above, operating revenues consist mostly of inferest earnings.
Nonoperating revenues and expenses consist mainly of a Transfer 1o the Commonwealth for the
Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund (MELF) program in the amount of $60 milfion and $15
million for 2007 and 20086, respectively.

Long-Term Debt

During the current audit period, the Authority issued one revenue bond totaling $187,500,000 to
provide funds for loan disbursements, investments in venture capital and grant expenditures. In
the prior year, the Authority issued two revenue bonds totaling $375 million. In addition, the
Authority entered into a service agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for the
payment of the annual debt service through an annual appropriation by the Commonwealth.
However, there is no assurance that there will be sufficient funds appropriated annually by the
Commonwealth.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Authoerity’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information,
contact the Commonwealth Financing Authority, 400 North Street, Fourth Floor, Harrisburg, PA
17120.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 335333775 § 315,911,068
Receivables (net):
Loans 2,367,072 997,830
Accrued interest 326,279 55,680
Penalties/iate fees 8,343 728
Other assets 5,856,640 4,222 403
Total current assets 343,892,109 321,187,709
Long-term assets:
Long-term portion of loans receivable (net) 122,545,599 38,482,356
Total assets 466,437,708 359,670,065
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 18,115,000 § 10,280,000
Accrued interest payable 2,410,245 2,976,740
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,046 20,498
Due to primary governments - DCED 359,312 273,805
Total current liabilities 20,890,603 13,551,143
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion and
unamortized bond premium 538,315,943 369,252,055
Total liabilities 559,206,546 382,804,098
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (deficit) (92,768,838) (23,134,033)
TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) $ (92,768,838) % {23,134,033)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
7
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

2007 006
OPERATING INCOME
Interest on loans 3 1,258,197 § 117,238
Interest on investments 15,809,023 5,322,967
Penalties/late fees 7,615 728
Commitment and application fee 973,887 31,668
Total operating income 18,048,722 5,472,601
OPERATING EXPENSE
Administrative/operating expense 2,426,663 1,756,126
Grant expense - Business in Our Sites 30,175,469 5,217,887
Grant expense - First Industries 3,354,502 2,847,655
Total operating expenses 35,956,634 9,821,668
Net operating loss before provision for loan losses (17,907,912) (4,349,067)
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 1,774,253 808,226
Net operating loss after provision for loan losses (19,682,165) (5,157,283}
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
Transfers in from primary government 35,468,689 5,064,189
Interest on bonds (24,623,173) (8,040,929)
Amortization of bond premium 322,012 -
Amortization of bond issuance costs (346,144) -
Transfers to primary government - MELF (60,000,000) (15,000,000}
Other (774,024) -
Total non-operating loss {49,952,640) (17,976,740)
Net loss (69,634,805) (23,134,033)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD (23,134,033) -
NET ASSETS, END OF PERIOD $ (92,768,838) $§  (23,134,033)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY

(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from interest and fees on loans $ 1,961,485 § 93,226
Cash received from interest on investments 15,809,023 5,322,967
Cash paid for operating expenses (2,355,708) (1,461,723)
Cash paid for grant expenses (33,529,971) (8,065,542)
Net cash used in operating activities (18,115,171) (4,111,072)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Principal receipt on loans 2,314,166 122,886
Investment in loans (78,294,928) (32,911,298)
Investment in venture capital (12,000,000) (7,500,000)
Transfer to primary government (60,000,000) (15,000,000}
Net cash used in investing activities (147,980,762) (55,288,412}
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bonds payable, net 185,519,619 375,310,552
Commonwealth appropriation 35,468,689 5,084,189
Principal payments on bonds (10,280,000) -
Interest on bonds payable (25,189,668) (5,064,189)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 185,518,640 375,310,652
NET INCREASE IN CASH 19,422,707 315,911,088
CASH, BEGINNING 315,911,068 -
CASH, END OF YEAR $ 335333,775 § 315,911,068
RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES TO CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net operating loss after provision for loan losses $ (19,682,165) § (5,157,293)
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 1,774,253 808,226
Effects of changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Interest receivables (270,599) (55,680)
Penalties/late fees (7,615) (728)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 70,955 294 403
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES $§  (18115,171) § (4,111,072)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financiai statements.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Commonwealth Financing Authority (“Authority”) is a body corporate and politic duly
organized by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ("Commonwealth”) incorporated under the
Public Authorities and Quasi-Public Corporations Act of 2004 (“Act’}, being the Act of April 1,
2004, P.L. 163, as amended by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority, by virtue of
the Act and its articles of incorporation, has all powers as set forth in the Act including those for
creation and retention of jobs. The purpose of the Authority is to engage in financial assistance
in the form of loans, loan guarantees, grants and private equity participating loans to promote
activities which lead to the creation and retention of jobs within the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, the establishment of economically viable Pennsylvania Communities, the
development of a stable tax base within Pennsylvania Communities, the reuse of abandoned
industrial, commercial and other previously utilized sites, the promotion and commercialization
of Pennsylvania products and services and investment of privaie capital in Pennsylvania
communities to promote the health, safety, employment, business opportunities, economic
activity and general welfare of the people of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

The legislation creating the Authority as well as program specific guidelines establish certain
activities to be carried out by the Authority as follows:

« Business in Our Sites Program: provides financial assistance for preparation of sites for
future development.

+ First Industries Program: provides financial assistance for projects related to tourism and
agriculture.

s Second Stage Loan Program: provides loan guarantees to commercial lending institutions
that make joans to life sciences, advanced technology or manufacturing businesses.

+ New Pennsylvania Venture Guarantee Program: provides guarantees to venture capital
partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies which are in early-stage or
mid-stage development.

+ Building Pennsylvania Program: provides loans to fund managers for investment in real
estate projects in Pennsylvania.

¢ TIF Guarantee Program: provides guarantees for TIF bonds or other indebtness in
accordance with the TIF Act of 1990.

¢« New Pennsylvania Venture Capital Investments Program: provides loans to Venture Capital
partnerships for investment in Pennsylvania Companies.

¢ Penn Works Program: provides grants and loans for water supply and wastewater
infrastructure within Pennsylvania.

10
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NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2607 and 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Reporting Entity

The Authority has adopted the provisions of Section 2100 of the Godification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards for the criteria used to evaluate organizations,
activities and functions that should be included in the Authority’s financial statements. The
basic criteria is the exercise of oversight responsibility over such organizations, activities and
functions. The Authority has not identified any entities which should be subject to evaluation for
inclusion in the Authority’s reporting entity.

The Commonwealth appoints the members of the Authority's governing board. The
Commonwealth maintains the accounts and records of the Authority. In addition, the
Commonwealth employs and supervises personnel to provide administrative services.
Therefore, the Authority is considered a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsyivania.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The Authority's financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. The Authority
appiies Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations, and the
Accounting Principles Board (APB) of the Committee of Accounting Procedures issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. A
proprietary fund is used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the
cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earmed, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accouniability, or other purposes.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the Authority is determined by its
measurement focus. The transactions of the Autherity are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities
associated with the operations are included on the balance sheef. Net assets represent total
assets net of total liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, include cash on
hand or on deposit with a maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase.

11
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve account for possible future loan losses. Loan iosses
and recoveries of previously charged-off loans are charged or credited directly to the allowance
account. The provision for loan losses is adjusted monthly at the rate of 2% of outstanding loan
balances af the respective month-end. The provision for loan losses was based on comparison
with other Authorities of the Commonwealth with similar operations and loan portfolio.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

The Authority recognizes loan origination fees and costs in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 91 ("SFAS No. 91"), Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees
and Costs Associated with Originating or Acquiring [.oans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases.
For the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, $774,024 and $0, respectively, of net deferred
fees are included in loans receivable.

Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Bond Premium and Discount

The difference between the cash received from bondholders at issuance and the amount due to
bondholders at maturity is recognized as bond premium or discount. Bond premium or discount
is amortized using the straight-line method over the lives of the bonds issued.

NOTE 2 - FINANCIAL SUPPORT

The Authority has a net asset deficit of $91,966,254 and $23,134,033 as of June 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively. The Authcrity’s business purpose will result in continued losses from
operation due to the disbursement of grant awards to help promote economic growth in the
Commonwealth. In addition, the Authority transferred part of their bond proceeds to the
Commonwealth for the Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund (MELF) program, which
contributes to the deficit in net assets.

Through a service agreement with the Authority, the Commonwealth has pledged to seek
annual appropriations to pay the Authority’s annual debt service obligations. Therefore, these

factors listed above, do not raise doubt as to the Authority’s ability to meet obligations when
due.

12
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS

Custodial Credit Risk

Custedial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of
June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Authority’s bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as

follows:
2007 2006
FDIC Insured $ 100,000 $ 200,000
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank’s trust
department not in the Autherity's name 335,233,775 315,711,068
Total 333.775 § 315911.068

NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Authority provides loans, in accordance with its enabling legislation and statutory
requirements to spur economic development activity within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
The icans have amortization periods not to exceed 20 years and bear interest at rates ranging
from 1% to 8% depending on the nature of the loan and the Authority program from which the
loan was funded.

The Authority, through the New Venture Capital Investment Program, provides loans to venture
capital partnerships for investmenis in Pennsylvania-related companies.

At June 30, 2007 and 2006,the outstanding balance of loans receivable was as follows:

2007
Current Long-term
Portion Portion Total
Loans receivable $ 2,469,848 $ 111,299,326 § 113,769,174
Venture Capital Investment loans - 14,500,000 14,500,000
Deferred loan crigination fees - net (53,379) (720,645) (774,024)
Allowance for loan losses (49.397) (2,533,082) (2,582,479)
l.oan receivable - net : 2367072 §$ 122,545509 § 124912671
2006
Loans receivable $ 1,018,257 $ 31,770,155 §$ 32,788,412
Venture Capital Investment loans - 7,500,000 7,500,000
Allowance for loan losses (20,427} (787.799) (808,226)
Loan receivable - net 997,830 38482356 § 39480.186
An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is as
follows:
2007 2006
Balance, beginning of year $ 808,226 % -
Provision for potential losses 1,774,253 808,226
Balance, end of year § 2582479 § 808,226

13
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COMMONWEALTH FINANGING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 5 - BONDS PAYABLE

Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series C in November
2006 at 4.9% - 5.2%, interest payable semi-annually and
principal payable annually through June 1, 2026.

Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $45,000,000 fixed rate,
tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $142,500,000
fixed rate, federally taxable revenue bonds, Series B in
April 2008 at 4.5% - 5.6%, interest only payable semi-
annually through June 1, 2026 and principal payable
annually through June 1, 2026.

Series 2005 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,500,000 fixed rate,
fax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $125,000,000
fixed rate, federally taxable revenue bonds, Series B in
November 2005 at 4.5% - 5.3%, interest payable semi-
annually and principal payable annually through June 1,
2025,

Less current portion
Unamortized bond premium

Long-term debt, net of current portion
and unamortized bond premium

2007 2006
$ 187,500,000 $ -
183,285,000 187,500,000
181,435,000 187,500,000
552,220,000 375,000,000
(18,115,000} (10,280,000}
4.210,943 4,632 955

Bond principal requirements subsequent to June 30, 2007 are as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30,
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013-2017
2018-2022
2023-2027

Total

14
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$ 538,315,943 § 369,252,955

Principal
Maturities Interest
$ 18,115,000 $ 28,922,940
19,055,000 27,986,705
20,045,000 26,998,370
21,095,000 25,952,020
22,195,000 24,850,346
129,785,000 105,477,256
168,275,000 67,037,578
153,655,000 18,927,322

$ 552,220,000 $ 326,153,437
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 5~ BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The Authority, with the Commonwealth approval, issued the above noted revenue bonds to fund
the activities of the Authority. Repayments with respect to the revenue bonds are derived solely
from project revenues which are defined as annual appropriations by the Commonwealth per
the Official Statement. The Revenue Bonds described above are limited obligations of the
Authority and are considered non-recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to bondholders
beyond amounts received by the Authority from annual appropriations to the Authority by the
Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has not pledged its full faith and credit nor the taxing
power of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision for the payment of the Authority’s
Revenue Bonds and the payments by the Commonwealth to the Authority are subject to annual
appropriation of funds for such purposes by the General Assembly and there is no assurance
that such funds will be appropriated in any fiscal year. Repayments of loans do not constitute
project revenues.

NOTE 6 —~ RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, through the
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED) to provide administrative and
operational support services for the Authority. The Authority employs one personnet and owns
no capital assets; the remaining employees performing services for the Authority are DCED
employees. As such under the memorandum of understanding, the Authority refmburses DCED
for services rendered by DCED employees to the Authority. During the fiscal year ended June
30, 2007 and 2008, the services provided by DCED to the Authority and recorded as
Administrative/Operating expenses totaled $2,426,663 and $1,756,126, respectively.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 and 20086, the Authority received $35,468,689 and
$5,064,189, respectively, in transfers from the Commonwealth to pay debt service with respect
fo Revenue Bonds. See Note 5 for details with respect to the Revenue Bonds.

NOTE 7 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Authority, through various economic development programs, provided loan guarantees as
follows:

2007 2008
First industries loan guarantees $ 9,220,250 $ 1,375,500
Tax increment financing guarantees 15,000,000 5,000,000
Second stage loan guarantees 2,660,000 375,000
Venture capital guarantees 172,500,000 -
Total loan guarantees $199.380.250 $ 6,750,500

The Authority has not been called upon, with respect to any loan guarantees, to make principal
or interest payments on behalf of the ultimate borrowers. Accordingly, no liability has been
reflected in the Authority’s financial statements for loan guarantees,

Through the various Authority loan and grant programs to promote economic development
within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the Authority has approved ioans, investments in
venture capital and grants of $300,107,152, $27,750,000 and $176,374,715, respectively, which
have not been disbursed as of June 30, 2007.
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m Clifton
Gunderson LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Commonwealth Financing Authority
(“Authority”) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 12, 2007. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to
initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of the entity's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Membor of

JSUM] cernacione
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compiiance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anycne other than these specified parties.

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 12, 2007
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NOTICES

m Clifton
Gunderson LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of the
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of the Commonwealth Financing
Authority (“Authority”) as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2008 and
2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As discussed in the Notes, the financial statements present only financial information about
the Commonwealth Financing Authority and are not intended to present fairly the financial
position of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the results of its operations and cash flows
of its proprietary and similar trust fund types in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The Authority is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ("Commonwealth").
As disclosed in Note 1 of the financial statements, the Authority has extensive transactions
and relationships with certain Commonwealth affiliated agencies. The financial position and
results of operations of the Authority may not be indicative of that which would have been
obtained had the Authority operated independently.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly the financial position of
the Authority, and the results of its operations and cash flows in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Membar of

Offices in 17 states and Washington, DC HLB International
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
August 29, 2008 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal contrcl over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis as referenced in the Table of Contents is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplemental information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

%WAL/A

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
August 29, 2008

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 44, NO. 11, MARCH 15, 2014

1627



1628

NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

The Commonwealth Financing Authority, hereafter referred to as the “Authority,” is pleased to
present its financial statements developed in compliance with Statement of Governmental
Accounting Standard No. 34, entitled “Basic Financial Statements — Management's Discussion
and Analysis — for State and Local Governments” (hereafter “GASB 34"), and related standards.
GASB 34 enhances information provided to the users of its financial statements. This section of
the financial reporting package presents our discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial
performance during the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007. Please read it in conjunction
with the Authority’s financtal statements that follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

« During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, the Authority executed its fourth bond issue
in the amount of $187.5 million to fund projects approved for grants, loans, and venture
capital investments under established financing programs. Since inception, the Authority
has awarded over $1 biflicn fo assist 729 economic development projects across the
Commonwealth.  This investment will leverage more than $3.2 billien in private
investment.

e The economic impact of these economic development projects, many of which are still in
planning and early construction phases, already has created more than 7,200 new jobs
and almost $1 billion in private investment.

¢ The Authority entered into a $50 million revolving credit agreement with Dexia Bank to
ensure sufficient funds are available for demands made on the loan guarantee
programs.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be
read in conjunction with, the basic audited financial statements. The MD&A represents
management's examination and analysis of the Authority's financial condition and performance.
Summary financial statement data and other management tools were used for this analysis.

The financial statements report information about the Authority using the full accrual method of
accounting, as utilized by similar business activities in the private sector. The financial
statements include a Statement of Net Assets; a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Assets; a Statement of Cash Flows; and notes to the Financial Statements.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the Authority on a full accrual
historical cost basis. The Statements of Net Assets also presents information on all of the
Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Over time,
increases and decreases in net assets are one indicator of whether the financial position of the
Authority is improving or deteriorating.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

While the Statement of Net Assets provides information about the nature and amount of
resources and obligations at year-end, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Assets presents the results of the business-type activities over the course of the fiscal year
and information as to how the net assets changed during the year. All changes in net assets
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of the related cash flows. This statement also provides certain information about the
Authority’s recovery of its costs.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from
operational, financing, and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipts and cash
disbursement information without consideration of the earnings event when an obligation arises,
or depreciation of capital assets.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that
are essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes
present information about the Authority’s accounting policies, significant account balances and
activities, long-term debt and subsequent events, if any.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Condensed Statements of Net Assets

Current assels
Long-term assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Totat liabilities

Net assets
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net assets (deficit)

2008 2007 2006
$ 448,882,160 $ 343,802,109 $ 321,187,709
184,532,028 122,545,599 38,482,356
633,414,188 466,437,708 350,670,065
29,135,723 20,890,603 13,651,143
702,026,980 538,315,943 369,252 955
731,162,703 550,206,546 382,804,098

(97.748515)

(92.768.838)

(23,134.033)

$§ (97,748515) § (92.768,838) $_(23,134.033)

The Authority issued bonds totaling $187.5 million for both 2008 and 2007, which caused an
increase in total liabilities of $172.0 and $176.4 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Due
to the issuance of bonds, the Authority has been able to increase the amount of loan
originations over the past two years, causing an increase in total assets of $167.0 and $106.8
as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Due to the nature of the loans, some of which
require drawdowns, funding not immediately disbursed upon Board approval is held as cash
and cash equivalents.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

2008 2007 2006
Operating income $ 16,398,583 $ 18,048722 $ 5,472,601
Operating expenses (35,525,735) (35,956,634) (9,821,668)
Provision for lcan losses (1,307,417) (1,774,253) (808,226)
Nanoperating expenses - net 15,454,892 (49,952 .640) (17.976,740)
Decrease in net assets $ (4979677) § (69.634,805) $§ (23,134,033)

The Authority continues to operate with a net asset deficit, partly due to its economic
development mission, which includes granting money to applicants for planning and
construction projects. In the prior year, the Authority incurred significant non-operating
expenses due fo the transfer to the Commonwealth for the Machinery and Equipment Loan
Fund {MELF) program in the amount of $60 million for 2007. There were no transfers to the
Commonwealth under this program for 2008,

Long-Term Debt

During the current audit period, the Authority issued one revenue bond totaling $187.5 million to
provide funds for loan disbursements, investments in venture capital and grant expenditures.
Since inception, the Authority has issued four revenue bonds totaling $750 million. The
Authority has a service agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for the payment of
the annual debt service through an annual appropriation by the Commonwealth. However,
there is no assurance that there will be sufficlent funds appropriated annually by the
Commonwealth.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Authority's finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the
money it receives. I you have questions about this report or need additional information,
contact the Commonwealth Financing Authority, 400 North Street, Fourth Floor, Harrisburg, PA
17120.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 435,076,058 $§ 335,333,775
Receivables {net):
Loans 5,653,990 2,367,072
Accrued interest 280,723 326,279
Penalties/late fees 1,989 8,343
Other assets 7,869,400 5,856,640
Total current assets 448,882,160 343,892,109
Long-term assets:
Long-term portion of loans receivable (net) 184,532,028 122,545,599
Total assets 633,414,188 466,437,708
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt 23,505,000 18,115,000
Accrued interest payable 5,124,764 2,410,245
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 41,413 6,046
Due to primary governments - DCED 464,546 359,312
Total current liabilities ‘ 29,135,723 20,890,603
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion and
unamortized bond premium 702,026,980 538,315,943
Total liabilities 731,162,703 559,206,546
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (deficit) {97,748,515) (92,768,838)
TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) $§ (97,748,515) § {92,768,838)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
OPERATING INCOME
Interest on loans $ 2,369,357 § 1,258,197
Interest on investments 13,910,201 15,809,023
Fee income 118,025 981,502
Total operating income 16,398,583 18,048,722
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative/operating expense 2,178,895 2,426,663
Grant expense - Business in Our Sites 31,961,556 30,175,469
Grant expense - First Industries 1,385,284 3,354,502
Totai operating expenses 35,525,735 35,956,634
Net operating loss before provision for loan losses (19,127,152) (17,907,912)
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 1,307,417 1,774,253
Net operating loss after provision for loan losses (20,434,569) (18,682,165)
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
Transfers in from primary government 47,037,935 35,468,689
Interest on bonds (31,637,458) (24,623,173)
Amortization of bond premium 228,360 322,012
Amortization of bond issuance costs (408,978) (346,144)
Transfers to primary government - MELF - (60,000,000)
Other 237,033 {774,024)
Total non-operating income (expense) 15,454,892 (49,952,640)
Net loss (4,979,677) (69,634,805)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD (92,768,838) (23,134,033)
NET ASSETS, END OF PERIOD $ (97,748,515) $  (92,768,838)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financia! statements.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY

(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 3G, 2008 and 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from interest and fees on loans
Cash received from interest on investments
Cash paid for operating expenses
Cash paid for grant expenses

Net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Principal receipt on loans
Investment in loans
Investment in venture capital
Transfer to primary government

Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bonds payable, net
Commonwealth appropriation
Principal payments on bonds
Interest on honds payable
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by noncapital
financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

2008 2007
$ 2540292 $ 1,961,485
13,910,201 15,809,023
(2,038,294) (2,355,708)
(33,346,840) (33,529,971)
(18,934,641) (18,115,171)
5,119,169 2,314,166
(63,812,898) (78,294,028)
(7,650,000) (12,000,000)
- (60,000,000)
(66,343,729) _ (147,980,762)
185,020,657 185,519,619
47,037,935 35,468,689
(18,115,000) (10,280,000)
(28,922 939) (25,189,668)
185,020,653 185,518,640
99,742,283 19,422,707
335,333,775 315,911,068
$ 435078058 $ 335,333,775

RECCNCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES TO CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net operating loss after provision for loan losses
Adjustments to reconcile net operating lcss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Provision for loan losses
Effects of changes in operating assets and ligbilities:
Interest receivables
Penalties/late fees
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and due to
primary governments - DCED

NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSUSED IN OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

$ (20434,569) $  (19,682,165)
1,307,417 1,774,253
45,556 (270,599)

6,354 (7,615)

140,601 70,955

$  (18934,641) $  (18,115171)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Commonwealth Financing Authority (“Authority”) is a body corporate and politic duly
organized by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (*Commonwealth”) incorporated under the
Public Authorities and Quasi-Public Corporations Act of 2004 (“Act”), being the Act of April 1,
2004, P.L. 163, as amended by the Commonweaith of Pennsylvania. The Authority, by virtue of
the Act and its articles of incorporation, has all powers as set forth in the Act including those for
creation and retention of jobs. The purpose of the Authority is to engage in financial assisiance
in the form of loans, loan guarantees, grants and private equity participating loans to promote
activities which lead to the creation and retention of jobs within the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, the establishment of economically viable Pennsylvania Communities, the
development of a stable tax base within Pennsylvania Communities, the reuse of abandoned
industrial, commercial and other previously utilized sites, the promotion and commercialization
of Pennsylvania products and services and investment of private capital in Pennsylvania
communities to promote the health, safety, employment, business opportunities, economic
activity and general welfare of the people of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

The legislation creating the Authority as well as program specific guidelines establish certain
activities to be carried out by the Authority as follows:

« Business in Our Sites Program: provides financial assistance for preparation of sites for
future development.

e First Industries Program: provides financial assistance for projects related to tourism and
agriculture.

¢ Second Stage Loan Program: provides loan guarantees to commercial lending institutions
that make loans to life sciences, advanced technology or manufacturing businesses.

¢ New Pennsylvania Venture Guarantee Program: provides guarantees to venture capital
partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies which are in early-stage or
mid-stage development.

¢ Building Pennsylvania Program: provides loans to fund managers for investment in real
estate projects in Pennsylvania.

« TIF Guarantee Program: provides guarantees for TiF bonds or other indebtedness in
accordance with the TIF Act of 1990.

* New Pennsylvania Venture Capital Investments Program: provides loans to Venture Capital
partnerships for investment in Pennsylvania Companies.

» Penn Works Program: provides grants and loans for water supply and wastewater
infrastructure within Pennsylvania.

10
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCGCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
Reporting Entity

The Authority has adopted the provisions of Section 2100 of the Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards for the criteria used to evaluate organizations,
activities and functions that should be included in the Authority’s financial statements. The
hasic criteria is the exercise of oversight responsibility over such organizations, activities and
functions. The Authority has not identified any entities which should be subject to evaluation for
inclusion in the Authority’s reporting entity.

The Commonwealth appoints the members of the Authority’s governing board. The
Commonwealth maintains the accounts and records of the Authority. In addition, the
Commeoenwealth employs and supervises personnel to provide administrative services.
Therefore, the Authority is considered a component unit of the Cormnmonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The Authority's financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. The Authority
applies Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statemenis and interpretations, and the
Accounting Principles Board (APB) of the Committee of Accounting Procedures issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. A
proprietary fund is used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the
cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or setvices to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that pericdic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public palicy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

The accounting and financial reporting freatment applied to the Authority is determined by its
measurement focus. The transactions of the Authority are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities
associated with the operations are included on the balance sheet. Net assets represent total
assets net of total liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, include cash on
hand or on deposit with a maturity of three menths or less at the date of purchase.

11
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve account for possible future loan losses. Loan losses
and recoveries of previously charged-off loans are charged or credited directly to the allowance
account. The provision for loan losses is adjusted monthly at the rate of 2% of outstanding loan
balances at the respective month-end. The provision for loan losses was based on comparison
with other Authorities of the Commonwealth with similar operations and loan portfolio.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

The Authority recognizes loan origination fees and costs in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 91 ("SFAS No. 81"), Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees
and Costs Associated with Originating or Acquiring Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases.
For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, $536,991 and $774,024, respeciively, of net
deferred fees are included in lcans receivable.

Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

For comparative purposes, prior year's financial statements have been reclassified to conform
to report classifications of the current year. The reclassifications had no effect on net assets.

Bond Premium and Discount

The difference between the cash received from bondholders at issuance and the amount due to
bondholders at maturity is recognized as bond premium or discount. Bond premium or discount
is amortized using the straight-line method over the lives of the bonds issued.

NOTE 2 — FINANCIAL SUPPORT

The Authority has a net asset deficit of $97,748,515 and $92,768,838 as of June 30, 2008 and
2007, respectively. The Authority's business purpose will result in continued losses from
operation due to the disbursement of grant awards to help promote economic growth in the
Commonwealth. In addition, the Authority transferred part of their bond proceeds in prior years
to the Commonwealth for the Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund (MELF) program, which
contributes to the deficit in net assets.

Through a service agreement with the Authority, the Commonwealth has pledged to seek
annual appropriations to pay the Authority’s annual debt service obligations. Therefore, these

factors listed above, do not raise doubt as to the Authority’s ability to mest obligations when
due.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk Is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits may
not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of
June 30, 2008 and 2007, the Authority’s bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as
follows:

2008 2007
FDIC Insured $ 100,000 $ 100,000
Uninsured and coliateral held by pledging bank’s trust
department not in the Authority’s name 434,976,058 335,233,775
Total $ 435076058 §$ 335333,775

Additionally, due to the short-term maturity and types of investments, there is limited interest
rate risk.

NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Authority provides loans, in accordance with its enabling legislation and statutory
requirements to spur economic development activity within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
The loans have amortization periods not fo exceed 20 years and bear interest at rates ranging
from 1% to 8% depending on the nature of the loan and the Authority program from which the
loan was funded.

The Authority, through the New Venture Capital Investment Program, provides loans to venture
capital partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies.

At June 30, 2008 and 2007, the outstanding balance of loans receivable was as follows:

2008
Current Long-term
Portion Portion Total
l.oans receivable $ 5,810,920 $166,651,985 $172,462,905
Venture Capital Investment loans - 22,150,000 22,150,000
Deferred loan origination fees - net (40,712) (496,279) (536,991)
Allowance for loan losses (116,218) (3,773,678} (3,889,896)
Loan receivable - net $ 50653990 $184.532,028 $190.186,018
2007
Loans receivable $ 2,469,848 $111,209,326 $11 3,769,174
Venture Capital Investment loans - 14,500,000 14,500,000
Deferred loan corigination fees - net (63,379) (720,645) (774,024)
Allowance for {oan losses (49,397) (2,5633.082)  (2.582.479)
Loan receivable - net $ 2367072 $122,545,599 $124.912.6871
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 is as
follows:

2008 2007
Balance, beginning of year $ 2582479 § 808,226
Change in provision for potential losses 1.307.417 1,774,253
Balance, end of year $ 3.889,896 §$ 2582479
NOTE 5 - BONDS PAYABLE
2008 2007
Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series A at 3.1% -5.2%,
interest payable semi-annuaily and principal payable
annually through June 1, 2027. $187,500,000 % -
Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series C in November
2006 at 4.9% - 5.2%, interest payable semi-annually and
principal payable annually through June 1, 2026. 181,385,000 187,500,000
Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $45,000,000 fixed rate,
tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $142,500,000
fixed rate, federally taxable revenue bonds, Series B in
April 2006 at 4.5% - 5.6%, interest only payable semi-
annually through June 1, 2026 and principal payable
annuaily through June 1, 2026. 177,640,000 183,285,000
Series 2005 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,500,000 fixed rate,
tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $125,000,000
fixed rate, federally taxable revenue honds, Series B in
November 2005 at 4.5% - 5.3%, interest payable semi-
annually and principal payable annually through June 1,
2025, 175,080,000 181,435,000
721,605,000 552,220,000
Less current portion (23,505,000)  (18,115,000)
Unamortized bond premium 3,826,980 4,210,943
Long-term debt, net of current portion
and unamortized bond premium $702.026.980 $538.315,943

14

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 44, NO. 11, MARCH 15, 2014

1639



1640 NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 5 - BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Bond principal requirements subsequent to June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Principal
Maturities Interest
For the Year Ended June 30,
2008 $ 23,505,000 $ 39,916,755
2009 26,645,000 36,777,389
2010 27,920,000 35,508,199
2011 29,280,000 34,142,180
2012 30,740,000 32,678,571
2013-2017 179,235,000 137,908,841
2018-2022 232,780,000 84,382,611
2023-2027 171,500,000 19,458,278
Total $ 721,605.000 $420.772.824

The Authority, with the Commonwealth approval, issued the above noted revenue bonds to fund
the activities of the Authority. Repayments with respect to the revenue bonds are derived solely
from project revenues which are defined as annual appropriations by the Commonwealth per
the Official Statement. The Revenue Bonds described above are limited obligations of the
Authority and are considered non-recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to bondholders
beyond amounts received by the Authority from annual appropriations to the Authority by the
Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has not pledged its full faith and credit nor the taxing
power of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision for the payment of the Authority’s
Revenue Bonds and the payments by the Commonwealth to the Authority are subject to annual
appropriation of funds for such purposes by the General Assembly and there is no assurance
that such funds will be appropriated in any fiscal year. Repayments of loans do not constitute
project revenues,

NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, through the
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED) to provide administrative and
operationat support services for the Authority. The Authority employs one personnel and owns
no capital assets; the remaining employees performing services for the Authority are DCED
employees. As such under the Memorandum of Understanding, the Authority reimburses
DCED for services rendered by DCED employees to the Authority. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007, the services provided by DCED to the Authority and recorded as
Administrative/Operating expenses totaled $2,178,895 and $2,426,663, respectively.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the Authority received $47,037,935 and
$35,468,689, respectively, in transfers from the Commonwealth to pay debt service with respect
to Revenue Bonds. See Note 5 for details with respect to the Revenue Bonds.

15
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE 7 — LINE OF CREDIT

The Authority has available a secured line of credit with a bank, which, under a revolving credit
agreement, is limited to borrowings of $50,000,000. Under the revolving credit agreement,
interest shall accrue on the aggregate unpaid principal amount outstanding on the draws. As of
June 30, 2008 and 2007, no funds were drawn under the revolving credit agreement.

NOTE 8 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Authority, through various economic development programs, provided loan guarantees as
follows:

2008 2007
First Industries loan guarantees $ 18,140,750 $ 9,220,250
Tax increment financing guarantees 30,000,000 15,000,000
Second stage loan guarantees 2,785,000 2,660,000
Venture capital guarantees 197,500,000 172,500,000
Total loan guarantees $248.425750 $199,380,250

The Authority has not been called upon, with respect to any loan guarantees, to make principal
or interest payments on behalf of the ultimate borrowers. Accordingly, no liability has been
reflected in the Authority’s financial statements for loan guaraniees.

Through the various Authority ioan and grant programs to promote economic development
within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the Authority has approved loans, investments in
venture capital and grants of $181,973,899, $27,500,000 and $39,398,626, respectively, which
have not been disbursed as of June 30, 2008.

This information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements,
18
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Commonwealth Financing Authority
(*Authority”) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon
dated August 29, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to
initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. We consider the deficiency described
below to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting.

Mombar ot

Offices in 17 states and Washington, DC HL International

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 44, NO. 11, MARCH 15, 2014



NOTICES

During the course of the audit, we discovered several misstaternents, that combined had a
material effect on the Authority’s financial statements. Specifically, adjustments were made to
properly record issuance costs and bond premium for the 2008 hond issuance and to correct
ervors made in recording the accrued interest income for loans and accrued interest expense for
bonds payable at year-end. We recommend that management establish procedures for review
and approval of journal entries for accuracy and completeness in the recording of month-end
accruals and all components of a bond issuance.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internat control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in the internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not
necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material
weaknesses. However, we believe that the significant deficiency described above is not a
material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reascnable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncempliance with which could have a
direct and materfal effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Capze omrctbran L) P

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
August 29, 2008
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009 and 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of the Commonwealth Financing
Authority (Authority), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as of June 30,
2009 and 2008, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets
and cash flows for the years then ended, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As discussed in the Notes, the financial statements present only financial information about
the Commonwealth Financing Authority and are not intended to present fairly the financial
position of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the results of its operations and cash flows
of its proprietary and similar trust fund types in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The Authority is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth).
As disclosed in Note 1 of the financial statements, the Authority has extensive transactions
and relationships with certain Commonwealth affiliated agencies. The financial position and
results of operations of the Authority may not be indicative of that which would have been
obtained had the Authority operated independently.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Authority, and the results of its operations and cash

flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Mamber of
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 8, 2009 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Audiiting Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit,

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis as referenced in the Table of Contents is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it

%MAL/)

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 8, 2009
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

The Commonwealth Financing Authority, hereafter referred to as the “Authority,” is pleased to
present its financial statements developed in compliance with Statement of Governmental
Accounting Standard No. 34, entitled “Basic Financial Statements — Management's Discussion
and Analysis — for State and Local Governments” (hereafter GASB 34), and related standards.
GASB 34 enhances information provided to the users of its financial statements. This section of
the financial reporting package presents our discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial
performance during the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008. Please read it in conjunction
with the Authority’s financial statements that foliow this section.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Authority implemented two major legislative initiatives approved by the General Assembly
in July 2008. Three new grant programs to repair high hazard unsafe dams, construct flood
controf projects, and repair water and sewer systems began accepting applications in December
2008. 774 applications requesting over $3 billion were received for consideration under the
$800 million H20 PA programs. The Authority also began accepting applications under four
new programs to promote alternative energy production, energy conservation, and
manufacturing of alternative energy equipment in the Commonwealth. The Authority will raise
$500 miillion through bond sales to fund the new energy programs.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be
read in conjunction with, the basic audited financial statements. The MD&A represents
management's examination and analysis of the Authority's financial condition and performance,
Summary financial statement data and other management tools were used for this analysis.

The financial statements report information about the Authority using the full accrual method of
accounting, as utilized by similar business activities in the private sector. The financial
statements include a Statement of Net Assets; a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Assets; a Statement of Cash Flows; and Notes to the Financial Statements.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the Authority on a full accrual
historical cost basis. The Statement of Net Assets also presents information on all of the
Authority's assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Over time,
increases and decreases in net assets are one indicator of whether the financial position of the
Authority is improving or deteriorating.

While the Statement of Net Assets provides information about the nature and amount of
resources and obligations at year-end, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Assets presents the results of the business-type activities over the course of the fiscal year
and information as to how the net assets changed during the year. Al changes in net assets
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of the related cash flows. This statement aiso provides certain information about the
Authority’s recovery of its costs.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

The Statement of Cash Fiows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from
operational, financing, and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipt and cash
disbursement information without consideration of the earnings event when an obligation arises,
or depreciation of capital assets.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that
are essential to a full understanding of materiai data provided in the statements. The notes
present information about the Authority’s accounting policies, significant account balances and
activities, long-term debt and subsequent events, if any.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Condensed Statements of Net Assets

2009 2008 2007

Assets:

Current assets $ 483,900,761 $ 448,882,160 $ 343,892,109

Long-term assets 239.787,756 184,532,028 122,545,599
Total assets 723,688 517 633,414,188 466,437,708

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 30,501,487 29,135,723 20,890,603
Long-term liabilities 773,952,402 702,026,980 538,315,943
Total liabilities 804,453,889 731,162,703 559,208,546

Total net deficit — unresfricted

$_(80,765372) $ (97,748,515) $ (92.768.838)

The Authority issued bonds totaling $100 million and $187.5 million in 2009 and 2008,
respectively, which caused an increase in total liabilities of $73 million and $172 million at June
30, 2008 and 2008, respectively. Due to the issuance of bonds, the Authority has been able to
increase the amount of loan originations over the past two years, causing an increase in total
assets of $90 million and $1687 million as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Due to the
nature of the loans, some of which require drawdowns, funding not immediately disbursed upon
Board approval is held as cash and cash equivalents.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

2009 2008 2007
Operating income $ 11614029 $ 16,398,583 $ 18,048,722
Operating expenses {18,734,695) (35,525,735) (35,956,634)
Provision for loan losses (1,177,504) (1,307,417) {(1,774,253)
Nonoperating income (expense) - net 25281313 15,454,892 (49.952.640)
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 16983143 § (4,979.677) $ (69,634,805)

Long-Term Debt

During 2009, the Authority issued one revenue bond totaling $100 million to provide funds for
loan disbursements and grant expenditures under Alternative Energy programs. Since
inception, the Authority has issued five revenue bonds totaling $850 million. The Authority has
a service agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for the payment of the annual
debt service through an annual appropriation by the Commonwealth. However, there is no
assurance that there will be sufficient funds appropriated annually by the Commonwealth.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information,
contact the Commonwealth Financing Authority, 400 North Street, Fourth Floor, Harrisburg, PA
17120.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
ASSETS
Current assets;
Cash and cash equivalents $ 466995050 $  435076,058
Receivables (net):
Loans 8,092,104 5,653,990
Accrued interest 530,832 280,723
Penalties/late fees 4,053 1,989
Other assets 8,278,722 7,869,400
Total current assets 483,900,761 448,882 180
Long-term assets:
Long-term portion of loans receivable (net) 239,787,756 184,532,028
Total assets 723,688,517 633,414,188
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt 26,645,000 23,505,000
Accrued interest payable 3,414,469 5,124,764
Accounts payabfe and accrued expenses - 41,413
Due to primary governments - DCED 442,018 464,546
Total current liabilities 30,501,487 29,135,723
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion and
unamertized bond premium and discount 773,962,402 702,026 980
Total liabilities 804,453,889 731,162,703
TOTAL NET DEFICIT - UNRESTRICTED $ (80,765,372) $ (97,748,515)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY

{COMPONENT UNIT OF THE GCOMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

OPERATING INCOME
Interest on loans
Interest on investments
Fee income
Interest from venture capital loan

Total operating income

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative/operating expense
Grant expense - Business in Our Sites
Grant expense - First Industries

Total operating expenses
Net operating loss before provision for ioan losses
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES
Net operating loss
NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
Transfers in from primary government
Interest on bonds
Amortization of bond premium
Amortization of bond issuance costs
Other
Total nonoperating income
Change in net assets

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD

NET ASSETS, END CF PERIOD

2009 2008
$ 3979784 $ 2,369,357
7,104,622 13,910,201
279,623 119,025

250,000 -
11,614,029 16,398,583
2,145,097 2,178,895
15,601,132 31,961,556
988,466 1,385,284
18,734,695 35,525,735
(7.120,666) (19,127,152)
1,177,504 1,307,417
(8,298,170) (20,434,560)
63,421,755 47,037,935
(38,206,461) (31,637,458)
221,031 226,360
(443,797) (408,978)
288,785 237,033
25,281,313 15,454,892
16,983,143 (4,979.677)
(97,748,515) (92,768,838)
$  (80,765,372) $  (97,748,515)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

8
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from interest and fees on loans $ 4,257234 § 2,540,292
Cash received from interest on invesiments 7,104,622 13,910,201
Cash paid for operating expenses (2,209,038) (2,038,294)
Cash paid for grant expenses (16,589,598) (33,346,840)
Net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities {7,436,780) (18,934,641
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Principal receipt on loans 6,197,927 5,119,169
Investment in loans (54,005,487) (63,812,898)
Investment in venture capital (10,775,000) {7,650,000}
Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities (58,582,560) (66,343,729)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from honds payable 97,938,333 185,020,657
Commonwealth appropriation 63,421,755 47,037,935
Principal payments on honds (23,505,000) (18,115,000)
interest on bonds payabie (39,816,756) (28,922,939)
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by noncapital
financing activities 97,938,332 185,020,853
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31,918,992 99,742,283
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 435,076,058 335,333,775
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 466995050 $ 435,076,058

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN
LOSSES TO CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net operating loss $ (8,298,170} $ (20,434,569)
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash
and cash equivalents used in operating activities:

Provision for loan losses 1,177,504 1,307,417
Effects of changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Interest receivables (250,109) 45,556
FPenalties/late fees (2,064) 6,354
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and due
to primary governments - DCED (63,941) 140,601

NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES $  (7436780) $ (18,934,641}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
9
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NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 1 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Commonwealth Financing Authority (Authority) is a body corporate and politic duly
organized by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) incorporated under the
Public Authorities and Quasi-Public Corporations Act of 2004 (Act), being the Act of April 1,
2004, P.L. 163, as amended by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority, by virtue of
the Act and its articles of incorporation, has all powers as set forth in the Act including those for
creation and retention of jobs. The purpose of the Authority is to engage in financial assistance
in the form of loans, loan guarantees, grants and private equity participating loans to promote
activities which lead to the use of alternative and clean energy, the creation and retention of
jobs within the Commonwealth of Pennsyivania, the establishment of economically viable
Pennsylvania communities, the development of a stable tax base within Pennsylvania
communities, the reuse of abandoned industrial, commercial and other previously utilized sites,
the promotion and commercialization of Pennsylvania products and services and investment of
private capital in Pennsylvania communities to promote the health, safety, employment,
business opportunities, economic activity and general welfare of the people of the
Commonwealth. ‘ '

The legislation creating the Authority as well as program specific guidelines establishes certain
activities to be carried out by the Authority as follows:

» Business in Our Sites Program: provides financial assistance for preparation of sites for
future development.

» First Industries Program: provides financial assistance for projects related to tourism and
agriculture,

* Second Stage Loan Program: provides loan guarantees to commercial lending institutions
that make loans to life sciences, advanced technology or manufacturing businesses.

« New Pennsylvania Venture Guarantee Program: provides guarantees to venture capital
partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies which are in early-stage or
mid-stage development.

e Building Pennsylvania Program: provides loans to fund managers for investment in real
estate projects in Pennsylvania.

» TIF Guarantee Program: provides guarantees for TIF bonds or other indebtedness in
accordance with the TIF Act of 1990.

* New Pennsylvania Venture Capital Investments Program: provides loans to Venture Capital
partnerships for investment in Pennsylvania companies.

« Penn Works Program: provides grants and loans for water supply and wastewater
infrastructure within Pennsylvania.

* HzO PA Program: provides for single-year or multi-year grants to municipalities or municipal
authorities to assist with the construction of flood control projects, drinking water, sanitary
sewer and storm sewer projects, and the repair of high hazard unsafe dams.

* Solar Energy Program: provides financial assistance in the form of grant and loan funds to
promote the generation and use of solar energy and the manufacture or assembly of solar
equipment.

10
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

¢ Renewable Energy Program: provides financial assistance in the form of grant and loan
funds to promote the use of wind and geothermal energy.

» Alternative and Clean Energy Program: provides grant and loan funds to encourage the
implementation of alternative energy production projects and clean energy projects.

+ High performance Buildings: provides grants and locans for the construction of energy
efficient buildings.

Reporting Entity

The Authority has adopted the provisions of Section 2100 of the Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards for the criteria used to evaluate organizations,
activities and functions that should be included in the Authority’s financial statements. The
basic criteria are the exercise of oversight responsibility over such organizations, activities and
functions. The Authority has not identified any entities which should be subject to evaluation for
inclusion in the Authority's reporting entity.

The Commonwealth appoints the members of the Authority’s governing beard.  The
Commonwealth maintains the accounts and records of the Authority.  In addition, the
Commonwealth employs and supervises personnel to provide administrative services,
Therefore, the Authority is considered a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The Authority’s financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. The Authority
applies Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations, and the
Accounting Principles Board (APB) of the Committee of Accounting Procedures issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. A
proprietary fund is used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the
cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management controi,
accountability, or other purposes.

11

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 44, NO. 11, MARCH 15, 2014

1655



1656

NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the Authority is determined by its
measurement focus. The transactions of the Authority are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities
associated with the operations are included on the balance sheet. Net assets represent total
assets net of total liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, include cash on
hand or on deposit with a maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase.

Altowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve account for possible future loan losses. Loan losses
and recoveries of previously charged-off loans are charged or credited directly to the allowance
account. The provision for loan losses is adjusted monthly at the rate of 2% of outstanding loan
balances at the respective month-end. The provision for loan losses was based on comparison
with other Authorities of the Commonwealth with similar operations and loan portfolic.

Interest iIncome
Interest income on investment securities and loans are recorded when eamed.

Uncollectible interest on loans that are contractually past due is charged off, or an allowance is
established based on management’s periodic evaluations. The allowance is established by a
charge-to-interest income equal to all previously accrued, and income is subsequently
recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received until, in management's judgment,
the borrower’s ability to make period interest and principal payments is back to normal.

In addition to fixed interest arrangements, some loans contain provisions which provide lump
sum interest payments based upon certain conditions being met. This additional income is
recognized when earned.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

The Authority recognizes loan origination fees and costs in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 91 (SFAS No. 91), Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees
and Costs Assoclated with Originating or Acquiring Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases.

For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2008, $248,320 and $536,991, respectively, of net
deferred fees are included in loans receivable.

12
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2002 and 2008

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

For comparative purposes, the prior year's financial statements have been reclassified fo
conform to report classifications of the current year. The reclassifications had no effect on net
assets.

Bond Premium and Discount

The difference between the cash received from bondholders at issuance and the amount due to
bondholders at maturity is recognized as bond premium or discount. Bond premium or discount
is amortized using the straight-line method over the lives of the bonds issued.

NOTE 2 ~ FINANCIAL SUPPORT

The Authority has a net asset deficit of $80,765,372 and $97,748,515 as of June 30, 2009 and
2008, respectively. The Authority’s business purpecse will result in continued losses from
operation due to the disbursement of grant awards to help promote economic growth in the
Commonwealth. In addition, the Authority transferred part of their bond proceeds in prior years
to the Commonwealth for the Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund (MELF) program, which
contributed to the deficit in net assets.

Through a service agreement with the Authority, the Commonwealth has pledged to seek
annual appropriations to pay the Authority’s annual debt service obligations. Therefors, these
factors listed above do not raise doubt as to the Authority’s ability to meet obligations when due.

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits may
not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of
June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Authority's bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as
follows:

2009 2008
FDIC Insured $ 250,000 % 100,000
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank’s trust
department not in the Authority's name 466,063,768 433,784,201
Total 466,31 8 § 433,884,201

Additionally, due to the short-term maturity and types of investments, there is limited interest
rate risk.
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NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Authority provides loans, in accordance with its enabling legislation and statutory
requirements to spur economic development activity within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
The loans have amortization periods not to exceed 20 years and bear interest at rates ranging
from 1% to 8% depending on the nature of the loan and the Authority program from which the
loan was funded.

The Authority, through the New Venture Capital Investment Program, provides loans to venture
capital partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies.

At June 30, 2009 and 2008, the outstanding balance of loans receivable was as follows:

2009
Current Long-term
Portion Portion Total
Loans receivable $ 8285866 $ 211,984,714 § 220,270,580
Venture Capital Investment loans - 32,925,000 32,925,000
Deferred loan origination fees - net (28,045) (220,275) (248,320)
Allowance for loan losses (165,717} (4,8901,683) (5.067.400)
Loan receivable - net $ 8002104 $ 239,787,756 $ 247,879,860
2008
L oans receivable $ 5810920 $ 166,651,985 $ 172,462,905
Venture Capital Investment loans - 22,150,000 22,150,000
Deferred ioan origination fees - net (40,712) (496,279) (536,991)
Allowance for loan losses (116,218) (3.773.678) (3,889,896)
Lean receivable - net $ 5653990 $ 184,532,028 $ 190,186.018

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 is as
follows:

2009 2008
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,880,806 $ 2,582,479
Change in provision for potential losses 1.177,504 1,307 417
Balance, end of year $.__5067,400 $§ 3,889,896
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 5 - BONDS PAYABLE
2009 2008

Series 2009 Revenue Bonds, issued $50,000,000 fixed rate,
federal taxable revenue bonds, Series A and $50,000,000
fixed rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series B at 3.0% -
8.4%, interest payable semi-annually and principal payable
annually through June 1, 2031. $100,000,000 $ -

Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series A at 3.1% -5.2%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through June 1, 2027, 183,050,000 187,500,000

Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series C at 4.9% - 5.2%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through June 1, 2026, 174,965,000 181,385,000

Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $45,000,000 fixed rate, tax
exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $142,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series B at 4.5% - 5.6%,
interest only payable semi-annually through June 1, 2026 and
principal payable annually through June 1, 2026. 171,675,000 177,640,000

Series 2005 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,500,000 fixed rate, tax
exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $125,000,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series B at 4.5% - 5.3%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually

through June 1, 2025. 168,410,000 175,080,000
798,100,000 721,605,000
Less current portion (26,645,000} (23,505,000)
Unamortized bond premium 3,701,371 3,926,980
Unamortized bond discount (1,203.969) -
Long-term debt, net of current portion
and unamortized bond premium $773,952402 § 702,026,980
Changes in long-term liabilities
Governmental Beginning Ending Due Within
Activities Balance Additions Deductions Balance One Year
Economic revenue
bonds $721,605,000 $100,000,000 $ 23,505,000 $798,100,000 $ 26,645,000
Bond premium 3,926,980 - 225609 3,701,371 -
Bond discount - (1,208,547) (4.578) (1,203,969) -
Totai $725531980 $ 98,7914563 § 23726031 § 800,597,402 § 26,645,000
15
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 5 ~ BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Bond principai requirements subsequent to June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Principal
Maturities Interest
For the Year Ended June 30,
2010 $ 26,645,000 $ 42,144,501
2011 30,715,000 40,633,292
2012 32,155,000 39,184,122
2013 33,725,000 37,610,229
2014 35,410,000 35,930,029
2015-201¢9 206,840,000 149,904,095
2020-2024 269,485,000 87,268,610
2025-2029 148,400,000 18,714,318
2030-2031 14.725.000 1,113,250
Total 7 00.000 $ 452,502,446

The Authority, with the Commonwealth approval, issued the above noted revenue bonds to fund
the activities of the Authority. Repayments with respect to the revenue bonds are derived solely
from project revenues which are defined as annual appropriations by the Commonwealth per
the Official Statement. The Revenue Bonds described above are limited obligations of the
Authority and are considered non-recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to bondholders
beyond amounts received by the Authority from annual appropriations to the Authority by the
Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has not pledged its full faith and credit nor the taxing
power of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision for the payment of the Authority's
Revenue Bonds and the payments by the Commonwealth o the Authority are subject to annual
appropriation of funds for such purposes by the General Assembly and there is no assurance
that such funds will be appropriated in any fiscal year. Repayments of loans do not constitute
project revenues.

NOTE 6 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, through the
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED) to provide administrative and
operational support services for the Authority. The Authority owns no capital assets; the
employees performing services for the Authority are DCED employees. As such, under the
Memorandum of Understanding, the Authority reimburses DCED for services rendered by
DCED employses to the Authority. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the
services provided by DCED to the Authority and recorded as Administrative/Operating expenses
totaled $2,145,097 and $2,178,895, respectively.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Authority received $63,421,755 and
$47,037,935, respectively, in transfers from the Commonwealth to pay debt service with respect
to Revenue Bonds. See Note 5 for details with respect to the Revenue Bonds.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE 7 — LINE OF CREDIT

The Authority has available a secured line of credit with a bank, which, under a revolving credit
agreement, is limited to borrowings of $50,000,000. Under the revolving credit agreement,
interest shall accrue on the aggregate unpaid principal amount outstanding on the draws. As of
June 30, 2009 and 2008, no funds were drawn under the revolving credit agreement. As of
June 30, 2009, the line of credit was terminated.

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Authority, through various economic development programs, provided loan guarantess as
follows:

2009 2008
First industries loan guarantees $ 18,340,250 $ 18,140,750
Tax increment financing guarantees 44,911,970 30,000,000
Second stage loan guarantees 2,035,000 2,785,000
Venture capital guarantees 190,000,000 197,500,000
Total loan guarantees $ 255,287,220 $248,425,750

The Authority has not been called upon, with respect to any loan guarantees, to make principal
or interest payments on behalf of the ultimate borrowers. Accerdingly, no liability has been
reflected in the Authority’s financial statements for loan guarantees.

Through the various Authority loan and grant pragrams to promote economic development
within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the Authority has approved loans, investments in
venture capital and grants of $223,206,530, $2,725,000 and $83,541,697, respectively, which
have not been disbursed as of June 30, 2009,

This information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements.
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m Clifton
Gunderson LLp

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Commonwealth Financing Authority
(Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 8, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over
financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to
initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Membor of

Offices in 17 states and Washington, DC HL International
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Authority in a separate letter
dated September 8, 2009.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Cpzz . Ziorrctorsann L) P

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 8, 2009
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania)
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010 and 2009
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m Clifton
Gunderson LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of the Commonwealth Financing
Authority (the Authority), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as of June
30, 2010 and 2009, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
assets and cash flows for the years then ended, which collectively comprise the Authority’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only financial information about the
Commonwealth Financing Authority and are not intended to present fairly the financial position
of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the results of its operations and cash flows of its
proprietary and similar trust fund types in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The Authority is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the
Commonwealth). As disclosed in Note 1 of the financial statements, the Authority has
extensive transactions and relationships with certain Commonwealth affiliated agencies. The
financial position and results of operations of the Authority may not be indicative of that which
would have been obtained had the Authority operated independently.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Authority, and the results of its operations and cash

flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Mombor
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 8, 2010 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis as referenced in the Table of Contents is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

%WALA

Lancaster, Pennsylvania
September 15, 2010
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

The Commonwealth Financing Authority, hereafter referred to as the “Authority,” is pleased to
present its financial statements developed in compliance with Statement of Governmental
Accounting Standard No. 34, entitled “Basic Financial Statements — Management’s Discussion
and Analysis — for State and Local Governments” (hereafter GASB 34), and related standards.
GASB 34 enhances information provided to the users of its financial statements. This section of
the financial reporting package presents our discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial
performance during the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. Please read it in conjunction
with the Authority’s financial statements that follow this section.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Authority deployed investments into two major legislative initiatives this Fiscal Year. By
approving a combined $95.7 million in grant, loan and loan guarantee funding assistance into
alternative energy projects, the Authority accelerated the use of alternative and clean energy in
the Commonwealth. Applicants received assistance under four energy programs, which include
the Solar Energy Program, Renewable Energy Program, Alternative & Clean Energy Program
and the High Performance Building Program.

The Authority provided $551 million in funding, which consists of grants for the construction and
upgrading of drinking water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer systems. In raising capital for this
H.0O initiative, the Authority issued Build America Bonds which will save over $46 million in debt
service over the life of the bonds.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be
read in conjunction with, the basic audited financial statements. The MD&A represents
management’s examination and analysis of the Authority’s financial condition and performance.
Summary financial statement data and other management tools were used for this analysis.

The financial statements report information about the Authority using the full accrual method of
accounting, as utilized by similar business activities in the private sector. The financial
statements include a Statement of Net Assets; a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Assets; a Statement of Cash Flows; and Notes to the Financial Statements.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the Authority on a full accrual
historical cost basis. The Statement of Net Assets also presents information on all of the
Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Over time,
increases and decreases in net assets are one indicator of whether the financial position of the
Authority is improving or deteriorating.

While the Statement of Net Assets provides information about the nature and amount of
resources and obligations at year-end, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Assets presents the results of the business-type activities over the course of the fiscal year
and information as to how the net assets changed during the year. All changes in net assets
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of the related cash flows. This statement also provides certain information about the
Authority’s recovery of its costs.
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(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from
operational, financing, and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipt and cash
disbursement information without consideration of the earnings event when an obligation arises,
or depreciation of capital assets.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that
are essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes
present information about the Authority’s accounting policies, significant account balances and
activities, long-term debt and subsequent events, if any.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Condensed Statements of Net Assets

2010 2009 2008
Assets:
Current assets $ 750,222,910 $ 483,900,761 $ 448,882,160
Long-term assets 287,632,709 239,787,756 184,532,028
Total assets 1,037,855,619 723,688,517 633,414,188
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 42,198,516 30,501,487 29,135,723
Long-term liabilities 1,282,704,529 773,952,402 702,026,980
Total liabilties 1,324,903,045 804,453,889 731,162,703

Total net deficit - unrestricted $ (287,047,426) $§ (80,765,372) $ (97,748,515)

The Authority issued bonds totaling $542 million and $100 million in 2010 and 2009,
respectively, which caused an increase in total liabilities of $520 million and $73 million at June
30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Due to the issuance of bonds, the Authority has been able to
increase the amount of loan originations over the past two years, causing an increase in total
assets of $314 million and $90 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Due to the
nature of the loans, some of which require drawdowns, funding not immediately disbursed upon
Board approval is held as cash and cash equivalents.

The significant increase in the total net deficit is attributable to $123 million in Authority assets
disbursed as grant proceeds under the H,O initiative, $85 million in assets that were transferred
to the Department of Environmental Protection and $13 million in assets transferred to the Ben
Franklin Technology Development Partners. The transfer of bond proceeds to these
Governmental entities was prescribed by legislation. Management acknowledges but is not
concerned with the annual net asset deficit. As an authority under which economic stimulus
programs are established, grants and transfers to other governmental entities are essential to
achieve its mission. The Authority has a service agreement with the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania in which the Commonwealth has pledged to seek annual appropriations to pay the
Authority’s annual debt service obligations to assist the Authority in funding the deficit.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

2010 2009 2008
Operating income $ 8,091,436 $ 11,614,029 $ 16,398,583
Operating expenses (138,624,287) (18,734,695) (85,525,735)
Provision for loan losses (1,093,798) (1,177,504) (1,307,417)
Nonoperating income (expense), net (74,655,405) 25,281,313 15,454,892
Increase (decrease) in net asset $ (206,282,054) $ 16,983,143 $ (4,979,677)

Operating expenses increased by approximately $120 million in FY 2010 and decreased by
approximately $17 million in FY 2009 due to the timing of grant payments. The Authority
established 7 new programs related to H,0 and Alternative Energy initiatives at the end of FY
2009 that provided grants that were disbursed in FY 2010. Under the H,O program, the
Authority received and reviewed over 800 applications for funding assistance.

For the year ended June 30, 2010, nonoperating income decreased by approximately $100
million over FY 2009 due to the transfer of $98 million in bond proceeds to other governmental
entities within the Commonwealth and a $20 million increase in bond interest payments. This
was offset by an increase in the Commonwealth appropriation of $18 million for debt service
payments.

Long-Term Debt

During 2010, the Authority issued revenue bonds for $142 million to provide funds for loan
disbursements and grant expenditures under Alternative Energy programs. In addition, the
Authority issued $400 million in Build America Bonds to provide for grant funding for flood
control, repairs to dams and water and sewer projects. Since inception, the Authority has issued
seven revenue bonds totaling $1.392 billion. The Authority has a service agreement with the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for the payment of the annual debt service through an annual
appropriation by the Commonwealth. However, there is no assurance that there will be
sufficient funds appropriated annually by the Commonwealth.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information,
contact the Commonwealth Financing Authority, 400 North Street, Fourth Floor, Harrisburg, PA
17120.

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 44, NO. 11, MARCH 15, 2014

1669



1670 NOTICES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 44, NO. 11, MARCH 15, 2014



NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY

(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables (net):

Loans
Accrued interest
Penalties/late fees

Unamortized bond costs, net

Total current assets

Long-term assets:

June 30, 2010 and 2009

Long-term portion of loans receivable (net)

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt

Accrued interest payable
Loan escrow deposit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to primary governments - DCED

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term debt, net of current portion and
unamortized bond premium and discount

Total liabilities

TOTAL NET DEFICIT - UNRESTRICTED

2010 2009
$ 722,767,227 466,995,050
14,553,346 8,092,104
994,617 530,832
7,881 4,053
11,899,839 8,078,722
750,222,910 483,900,761
287,632,709 239,787,756
1,037,855,619 723,688,517
34,210,000 26,645,000
6,842,177 3,414,469
388,080 -
159,508 -
598,751 442,018
42,198,516 30,501,487
1,282,704,529 773,952,402
1,324,903,045 804,453,889
$ (287,047,426) $  (80,765,372)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
OPERATING INCOME
Interest on loans $ 5,138,479 $ 3,979,784
Interest on investments 2,286,686 7,104,622
Fee income 621,182 279,623
Interest from venture capital loan 45,089 250,000
Total operating income 8,091,436 11,614,029
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative/operating expense 2,650,469 2,145,097
Grant expense - Business in Our Sites 11,295,858 15,601,132
Grant expense - First Industries 495,964 988,466
Grant expense - Solar Energy 937,826 -
Grant expense - Water and Sewer 122,963,532 -
Grant expense - Alternative and Clean Energy 168,564 -
Loan guarantee expense 112,074 -
Total operating expenses 138,624,287 18,734,695
Net operating loss before provision for loan losses (130,532,851) (7,120,666)
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 1,093,798 1,177,504
Net operating loss (131,626,649) (8,298,170)
NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
Transfers in from primary government 81,654,535 63,421,755
Interest on bonds (58,447,233) (38,206,461)
Amortization of bond premium 174,982 221,031
Amortization of bond issuance costs (545,267) (443,797)
Transfers to primary government (98,000,000) -
Other 507,578 288,785
Total nonoperating income (expense) (74,655,405) 25,281,313
Change in net assets (206,282,054) 16,983,143
NET DEFICIT, BEGINNING OF PERIOD (80,765,372) (97,748,515)
NET DEFICIT, END OF PERIOD $ (287,047,426) $  (80,765,372)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
8
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from interest and fees on loans $ 5,337,137 $ 4,257,234
Cash received from interest on investments 2,286,686 7,104,622
Cash paid for operating expenses (2,334,228) (2,209,038)
Cash paid for grant expenses (135,861,744) (16,589,598)
Cash paid for loan guarantees (112,074) -
Net cash used in operating activities (130,684,223) (7,436,780)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Principal receipt on loans 18,330,460 6,197,927
Investment in loans (69,834,794) (54,005,487)
Investment in venture capital (3,000,000) (10,775,000)
Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities (54,504,334) (58,582,560)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bonds payable 538,970,724 97,938,333
Transfer to primary government from bond proceeds (98,000,000) -
Commonwealth appropriation 81,654,535 63,421,755
Principal payments on bonds (26,645,000) (28,505,000)
Interest on bonds payable (55,019,525) (39,916,756)
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities 440,960,734 97,938,332
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 255,772,177 31,918,992
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 466,995,050 435,076,058
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 722,767,227 $ 466,995,050
RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS TO
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net operating loss $ (131,626,649) $ (8,298,170)
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash
and cash equivalents used in operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 1,093,798 1,177,504
Effects of changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable (463,785) (250,109)
Penalties/late fees (3,828) (2,064)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and due
to primary governments - DCED 316,241 (63,941)
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (130,684,223) $ (7,436,780)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Commonwealth Financing Authority (the Authority) is a body corporate and politic duly
organized by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the Commonwealth) incorporated under the
Public Authorities and Quasi-Public Corporations Act of 2004 (Act), being the Act of April 1,
2004, P.L. 163, as amended by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority, by virtue of
the Act and its articles of incorporation, has all powers as set forth in the Act including those for
creation and retention of jobs. The purpose of the Authority is to engage in financial assistance
in the form of loans, loan guarantees, grants and private equity participating loans to promote
activities which lead to the use of alternative and clean energy, the creation and retention of
jobs within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the establishment of economically viable
Pennsylvania communities, the development of a stable tax base within Pennsylvania
communities, the reuse of abandoned industrial, commercial and other previously utilized sites,
the promotion and commercialization of Pennsylvania products and services and investment of
private capital in Pennsylvania communities to promote the health, safety, employment,
business opportunities, economic activity and general welfare of the people of the
Commonwealth.

The legislation creating the Authority as well as program specific guidelines establishes certain
activities to be carried out by the Authority as follows:

e Business in Our Sites Program: provides financial assistance for preparation of sites for
future development.

e First Industries Program: provides financial assistance for projects related to tourism and
agriculture.

e Second Stage Loan Program: provides loan guarantees to commercial lending institutions
that make loans to life sciences, advanced technology or manufacturing businesses.

e New Pennsylvania Venture Guarantee Program: provides guarantees to venture capital
partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies which are in early-stage or
mid-stage development.

e Building Pennsylvania Program: provides loans to fund managers for investment in real
estate projects in Pennsylvania.

e TIF Guarantee Program: provides guarantees for TIF bonds or other indebtedness in
accordance with the TIF Act of 1990.

¢ New Pennsylvania Venture Capital Investments Program: provides loans to Venture Capital
partnerships for investment in Pennsylvania companies.

e Penn Works Program: provides grants and loans for water supply and wastewater
infrastructure within Pennsylvania.

e H,O PA Program (Water and Sewer): provides for single-year or multi-year grants to
municipalities or municipal authorities to assist with the construction of flood control projects,
drinking water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer projects, and the repair of high hazard
unsafe dams.

10
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e Solar Energy Program: provides financial assistance in the form of grant and loan funds to
promote the generation and use of solar energy and the manufacture or assembly of solar
equipment.

e Renewable Energy Program: provides financial assistance in the form of grant and loan
funds to promote the use of wind and geothermal energy.

e Alternative and Clean Energy Program: provides grant and loan funds to encourage the
implementation of alternative energy production projects and clean energy projects.

e High performance Buildings: provides grants and loans for the construction of energy
efficient buildings.

Reporting Entity

The Authority has adopted the provisions of Section 2100 of the Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards for the criteria used to evaluate organizations,
activities and functions that should be included in the Authority’s financial statements. The
basic criteria are the exercise of oversight responsibility over such organizations, activities and
functions. The Authority has not identified any entities which should be subject to evaluation for
inclusion in the Authority’s reporting entity.

The Commonwealth appoints the members of the Authority’s governing board. The
Commonwealth maintains the accounts and records of the Authority. In addition, the
Commonwealth employs and supervises personnel to provide administrative services.
Therefore, the Authority is considered a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The Authority’s financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. The Authority
applies Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations, and the
Accounting Principles Board (APB) of the Committee of Accounting Procedures issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. A
proprietary fund is used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the
cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.
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(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the Authority is determined by its
measurement focus. The transactions of the Authority are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities
associated with the operations are included on the balance sheet. Net assets represent total
assets net of total liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, include cash on
hand or on deposit in highly liquid financial debt instruments with a maturity of three months or
less at the date of purchase.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve account for possible future loan losses. Loan losses
and recoveries of previously charged-off loans are charged or credited directly to the allowance
account. The provision for loan losses is adjusted monthly at the rate of 2% of outstanding loan
balances at the respective month-end. The provision for loan losses was based on comparison
with other Authorities of the Commonwealth with similar operations and loan portfolio.

Interest Income

Interest income on investment securities and loans are recorded when earned.

Uncollectible interest on loans that are contractually past due is charged off, or an allowance is
established based on management’s periodic evaluations. The allowance is established by a
charge-to-interest income equal to all previously accrued, and income is subsequently
recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received until, in management’s judgment,
the borrower’s ability to make periodic interest and principal payments is back to normal.

In addition to fixed interest arrangements, some loans contain provisions which provide lump
sum interest payments based upon certain conditions being met. This additional income is
recognized when earned.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

The Authority recognizes loan origination fees and costs in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 91 (SFAS No. 91), Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees
and Costs Associated with Originating or Acquiring Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases.

For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, $259,258 and $248,320, respectively, of net
deferred fees are included in loans receivable.

12

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 44, NO. 11, MARCH 15, 2014



NOTICES
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(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

For comparative purposes, the prior year’s financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to report classifications of the current year. The reclassifications had no effect on net
assets.

Bond Premium and Discount

The difference between the cash received from bondholders at issuance and the amount due to
bondholders at maturity is recognized as bond premium or discount. Bond premium or discount
is amortized using the straight-line method over the lives of the bonds issued, which
approximates the interest method.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs consist of legal, underwriting and other fees charged in connection with the
issuance of bond debt. The costs are amortized over the lives of the bonds, which range from
20 to 30 years. The bonds mature serially through 2039. Amortization was $545,267 and
$443,797 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

NOTE 2 - FINANCIAL SUPPORT

The Authority has a net asset deficit of $287,047,426 and $80,765,372 as of June 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively. The Authority’s business purpose will result in continued losses from
operation due to the disbursement of grant awards to help promote economic growth in the
Commonwealth. In addition, the Authority transferred part of their bond proceeds to the
Commonwealth Department of Environmental Protection and the Ben Franklin Technology
Development Authority in the current year and in prior years to the Commonwealth for the
Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund (MELF) program, which contributed to the deficit in net
assets.

Through a service agreement with the Authority, the Commonwealth has pledged to seek
annual appropriations to pay the Authority’s annual debt service obligations. Therefore, these
factors listed above do not raise doubt as to the Authority’s ability to meet obligations when due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of
June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Authority’s bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as

follows:
2010 2009

FDIC Insured $ 250,000 $ 250,000
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank’s trust

department not in the Authority’s name 721,721,132 466,063,768
Total $ 721971132 $ 466,313,768
Additionally, due to the short-term maturity and types of investments, there is limited interest
rate risk.

NOTE 4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Authority provides loans, in accordance with its enabling legislation and statutory
requirements to spur economic development activity within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
The loans have amortization periods not to exceed 20 years and bear interest at rates ranging
from 1% to 8% depending on the nature of the loan and the Authority program from which the
loan was funded.

The Authority, through the New Venture Capital Investment Program, provides loans to venture
capital partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies.

At June 30, 2010 and 2009, the outstanding balance of loans receivable was as follows:

2010
Current Long-term
Portion Portion Total
Loans receivable $ 14,772,342 $ 256,165,653 $ 270,937,995
Venture Capital Investment loans - 37,150,000 37,150,000
Deferred loan origination fees - net 9,841 249,417 259,258
Allowance for loan losses (228,837) (5,932,361) (6,161,198)
Loan receivable - net $ 14553346 $ 287,632,709 $ 302,186,055
2009
Loans receivable $ 8,285,866 $ 211,984,714 $ 220,270,580
Venture Capital Investment loans - 32,925,000 32,925,000
Deferred loan origination fees - net (28,045) (220,275) (248,320)
Allowance for loan losses (165,717) (4,901,683) (5,067,400)
Loan receivable - net $ 8,092,104 §$ 239,787,756 $ 247,879,860
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(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 is as

follows:

2010

2009

Balance, beginning of year $ 5,067,400
Change in provision for potential losses 1,093,798

$

3,889,896
1,177,504

Balance, end of year $ 6,161,198
There were no loans charged off in FY 2010 or FY 2009.

NOTE 5 - BONDS PAYABLE
2010

$ 5.067.400

2009

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,000,000 fixed rate,
federal taxable revenue bonds, Series A and $80,000,000
fixed rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series B at .93% -
5.5%, interest payable semi-annually and principal payable
annually through May 1, 2031. $ 142,000,000

Series 2009 Revenue Bonds, issued $400,000,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series D at 3.4% - 5.1%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable
annually through May 1, 2039. 400,000,000

Series 2009 Revenue Bonds, issued $50,000,000 fixed rate,
federal taxable revenue bonds, Series A and $50,000,000
fixed rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series B at 3.0% -
6.4%, interest payable semi-annually and principal payable
annually through June 1, 2031. 100,000,000

Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series A at 3.1% -5.2%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable
annually through June 1, 2027. 176,450,000

Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series C at 4.9% - 5.2%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable
annually through June 1, 2026. 168,225,000

Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $45,000,000 fixed rate,
tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $142,500,000 fixed
rate, federally taxable revenue bonds, Series B at 4.5% -
5.6%, interest only payable semi-annually through June 1,
2026 and principal payable annually through June 1, 2026. 165,375,000
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(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 5 - BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

2010 2009

Series 2005 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,500,000 fixed rate,

tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $125,000,000 fixed

rate, federally taxable revenue bonds, Series B at 4.5% -

5.3%, interest payable semi-annually and principal payable

annually through June 1, 2025. $ 161,405,000 $ 168,410,000

1,313,455,000 798,100,000

Less current portion (34,210,000) (26,645,000)
Unamortized bond premium 4,657,904 3,701,371
Unamortized bond discount (1,198,375) (1,203,969)
Long-term debt, net of current portion

and unamortized bond premium $1,282,704,529 $ 773,952,402

Changes in long-term liabilities as of June 30, 2010:

Governmental
Activities

Beginning Due Within
Balance Additions Deductions Ending Balance One Year

Economic revenue
bonds

Bond premium
Bond discount
Total

$798,100,000 $542,000,000 $ 26,645,000 $ 1,313,455,000 $ 34,210,000
3,701,371 1,137,110 180,577 4,657,904 -
(1,203,969) - (5.594) (1,198,375) -

$800,597,402 $543,137,110 $ 26,819,983 §$ 1,316.914,529 $34,210,0000

Changes in long-term liabilities as of June 30, 2009:

Governmental
Activities

Beginning Due Within
Balance Additions Deductions Ending Balance One Year

Economic revenue
bonds

Bond premium
Bond discount
Total

$721,605,000 $100,000,000 $ 23,505,000 $ 798,100,000 $ 26,645,000
3,926,980 - 225,609 3,701,371 -
- (1.208,547) (4,578) (1,203,969) -
$725531.980 §$ 98.791453 § 23,726.031 $ 800.597.402 $26.645.0000
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 5 - BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Bond principal requirements subsequent to June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Principal
Maturities Interest
For the Year Ended June 30,
2011 $ 34,210,000 $ 71,111,088
2012 36,400,000 68,910,785
2013 47,265,000 67,263,029
2014 49,255,000 65,167,236
2015 51,445,000 62,850,475
2016-2020 296,520,000 272,595,273
2021-2025 379,845,000 183,893,119
2026-2030 210,560,000 92,966,026
2031-2035 119,750,000 92,966,026
2036-2039 88,205,000 13,982,417
Total $1.313,455,000 $ 945,721,766

The Authority, with the Commonwealth approval, issued the above noted revenue bonds to fund
the activities of the Authority. Repayments with respect to the revenue bonds are derived solely
from project revenues which are defined as annual appropriations by the Commonwealth per
the Official Statement. The Revenue Bonds described above are limited obligations of the
Authority and are considered non-recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to bondholders
beyond amounts received by the Authority from annual appropriations to the Authority by the
Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has not pledged its full faith and credit nor the taxing
power of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision for the payment of the Authority’s
Revenue Bonds and the payments by the Commonwealth to the Authority are subject to annual
appropriation of funds for such purposes by the General Assembly and there is no assurance
that such funds will be appropriated in any fiscal year. Repayments of loans do not constitute
project revenues.

NOTE 6 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, through the
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED) and the Department of
Environmental Protection (DEP) to provide administrative and operational support services for
the Authority. The Authority owns no capital assets; the employees performing services for the
Authority are DCED employees. As such, under the Memorandum of Understanding, the
Authority reimburses DCED for services rendered by DCED employees to the Authority. During
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the services provided by DCED to the Authority
and recorded as Administrative/Operating expenses totaled $2,650,469 and $2,145,097,
respectively.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Authority received $81,654,535 and
$63,421,755, respectively, in transfers from the Commonwealth to pay debt service with respect
to Revenue Bonds. See Note 5 for details with respect to the Revenue Bonds.
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NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 6 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The Authority transferred part of their bond proceeds to the Commonwealth Department of
Environment Protection and the Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority totaling
$98,000,000 and $0 for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2010 and 2009 respectively.

NOTE 7 - LINE OF CREDIT

In December 2009, the Authority entered into a secured line of credit with the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania Treasury Department, which, under a revolving credit agreement, is limited to
borrowings of $50,000,000. Under the revolving credit agreement, interest shall accrue on the
aggregate unpaid principal amount outstanding on the draws. The interest rate is the greater of
the rate of the United States Federal Funds Target Rate plus 75 basis points or the rate set by
the British Bankers Association for London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) for a six month term
in United States dollars plus 45 basis points. The interest rate is reset as of the 20" of each
month. As of June 30, 2010, the interest rate was 1.20%; however, no funds were drawn under
the revolving credit agreement.

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Authority, through various economic development programs, provided loan guarantees as
follows:

2010 2009
First Industries loan guarantees $ 37,797,428 $ 18,340,250
Tax increment financing guarantees 44,911,970 44,911,970
Second stage loan guarantees 2,910,000 2,035,000
Venture capital guarantees 197,500,000 190,000,000
Total loan guarantees $ 283,119,398 $ 255,287,220

The Authority has been called upon, with respect to one loan guarantee, to make principal or
interest payments on behalf of the ultimate borrowers. Accordingly, a liability totaling $112,074
has been reflected in the Authority’s financial statements for loan guarantees as of June 30,
2010. There were no liabilities recorded for loan guarantees as of June 30, 2009.

Through the various Authority loan and grant programs to promote economic development
within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the Authority has approved loans, investments in

venture capital and grants of $35,632,203, $2,725,000 and $168,573,323, respectively, which
have not been disbursed as of June 30, 2010.
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m Clifton
Gunderson LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Commonwealth Financing Authority (the
Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 15, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over
financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Mombor of

1 9 International
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NOTICES

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Authority in a separate letter
dated September 15, 2010.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors,
management, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

C%VWAZ_/)

Lancaster, Pennsylvania
September 15, 2010
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Zelenkofske Axelrod LLC

INDEI;ENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Commoenwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying Statement of Net Deficits of the business-type activities of the
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY (‘the AUTHCRITY"), a component unit of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, as of June 30, 2011, and the related statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Deficits
and Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended, which collectively comprise the Authority's 2011 basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
AUTHORITY’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. The financial statements of the Authority as of June 30, 2010, were audited by other auditors whose report
dated September 15, 2010, expressed an ungualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the business-type activities of the AUTHORITY as of June 30, 2011, and the changes in financial position
and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30, 2011, on
our consideration of the AUTHORITY's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2011. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the AUTHORITY
adepted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement No. 58, “Financial Instruments
Omnibus”.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the managements discussion
and analysis on pages 2 through 3 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial staternents in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. \We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquires, the basic financiai statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence
to express an opinicn or provide any assurance.

btk Akabve L0
ZELENKOFSKE AXELROD LLC

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 30, 2011

Harrisburg Lehigh Valley Philadelphia Pittsburgh
830 Sir Thomas Court, Suite 100 1101 West Hamilton Street 2370 York Road, Suite A-5 3800 McKnight E. Drive, Suite 3805
Harrisburg, PA 17109 Allentown, PA 18101-1043 Jamison, PA 18929 Pittsburgh, PA 15237
717.561.9200 Fax 717.561.9202 610.871.5077  Fax 717.561.9202 2159182277  Fax 215.918.2302 412.367.71(?  Fax 412.367.7103
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Commonwealth Financing Authority Page 2
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

The Commenwealth Financing Authority, hereafter referred to as the "Authority,” is pleased to present its financial
statements developed in compliance with Statement of Governmental Accounting Standard No. 34, entitled “Basic
Financial Statements — Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments” (hereafter GASB
34), and related standards. GASB 34 enhances information provided to the users of its financial statements. This
section of the financial reporing package presents our discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial
performance during the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority's
financial statements that follow this section.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Over the past two fiscal years, the Authority has approved 463 projects totaling $728 million in funding under the H20
initiative. This program provides funding for the construction and upgrading of drinking water, sanitary sewer and
storm sewer systems. In raising capitai for this H20O initiative, the Authority issued Build America Bonds which will
save over $61 million in debt service over the life of the bonds.

The Autherity deployed investments into another major legislative initiative this Fiscal Year. By approving 97 projects
totaling $44 million in grant funding assistance, the Authority helped to support and enhance community and
economic well-being and mitigate the impact of gaming and related activity. The program is capitalized by revenue

generated from gaming operations in Luzerne and Monroe Counties. Projects are located in Carbon, Lackawanna, )

Luzerne, Monroe, Northampton, Pike, and Wayne Counties.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be read in conjunction with,
the basic audited financial statements. The MD&A represents management's examination and analysis of the
Authority's financial condition and performance. Summary financial statement data and other management tools
were used for this analysis.

The financial statements report information about the Authority using the full accrual method of accounting, as utilized
by similar business acfivities in the private sector. The financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets: a
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; a Statement of Cash Flows; and Notes to the
Financial Statements.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the Authority on a full accrual historical cost basis.
The Statement of Net Assets also presents information on all of the Authority's assets and liabilities, with the
difference reported as net assets. Over time, increases and decreases in net assets are one indicator of whether the
financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

While the Statement of Net Assets provides information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations at
year-end, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets presents the results of the business-
type activities over the course of the fiscai year and information as o how the net assets changed during the year. All
changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of the related cash flows. This statement also provides certain information about the Authority's recovery
of its costs.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from aperational, financing,
and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipt and cash disbursement information without
consideration of the earnings event when an obligation arises, or depreciation of capital assets.

The Notes fo the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that are essential to a full

understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes present information about the Authority’s
accounting polictes, significant account balances and activities, long-term debt and subsequent events, if any.
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Page 3
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Condensed Statements of Net Assets
2011 2010 2009
Assets:
Current assets $ 678,584,633 3 750,222,910 $ 483,800,761
Long-term assets 307,484,704 287,632,702 238,787,756
Total assets 986,069,237 1,037,855,619 723,688,517
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 46,714,982 42,198,516 30,501,487
Long-term lizbilities 1,395,049,687 1,282,704,529 773,952,402
Total liabilities 1,441,764 669 1,324,803,045 804,453,889
Total net deficit - unrestricted $ (455,695,432) $ (287,047,426) $ (80,765,372)

The Authority issued bonds totaling $150 million and $542 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively, which were the
primary causes of the increase in total liabilities of $117 million and $520 million at June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. In 2011, the Authority's total assets declined by $52 miliion due to the transfer of $38 million to other
Commonwealth agencies far initiatives prescribed under legislation and also due to grant disbursements, particularly
H20 program grants. As a result of the issuance of bonds in 2010, the Autherity was able to increase the amount of
foan originations during the year, causing an increase in total assets of $314 million as of June 30, 2010. Due to the
nature of the loans, some of which require drawdowns, funding not immediately disbursed upon Board approval is
held as cash and cash equivalents. Operating expenses declined as compared to the previous year by $0.4 million.
The reduction corresponds to the reduced staff fime necessary to review and process application for funding during
2011. In 2010, staffing requirements associated with the H20 and Alternative Energy initiatives resulted in higher
administrative expenses. In 2010, the Authority received and reviewed over 800 applications for funding assistance
under the H20 program.

The significant increase in the total net deficit is attributable to the $217 million in Authority assets disbursed as grant
proceeds, the $25 million in assets that were transferred to the Department of Environmental Protection and the $13
million in assets transferred to the Ben Franklin Technology Development Partners. The transfer of bond proceeds to
these Governmental entities was prescribed by legislation. Management acknowledges but is not concerned with the
annual net asset deficit. As an authority under which economic stimulus programs are established, grants and
transfers to other governmental entities are essential to achieve its mission.

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

2011 2010 2009
Operating income $ 8,449,239 3 8,091,436 3 11,614,029
Operating expenses (219,224,694) (138,624,287) (18,734,695)
Provision for loan losses (423,549) (1,093,798) (1,177,504)
Nonoperating income (expense),net 47 550,998 {74,655,405) 25,281,313
Increase (decrease) in net asset ) (168,648,006) $ (206,282,054} 3 16,883,143

During 2011, the Authority issued revenue bonds for $150 million to provide funds for grant expenditures under the
H20 program. This bond issuance consisted of a $97 million Build America Bond component. Since inception, the
Authority has issued eight revenue bonds totaling $1.542 billion. The Authority has a service agreement with the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for the payment of the annual debt service through an annual appropriation by the
Commonwealth, and fransfers from the Gaming Economic Development Tourism Fund. However, there is no
assurance that there will be sufficient funds appropriated annually by the Commonwealth.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, investors and creditors with a general overview of the
Authority's finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions

“about this report or need additional information, contact the Commonweaith Financing Authority, 400 North Street,
Fourth Floor, Harrishurg, PA 17120,
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NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY

(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Loans-(nef)

Accrued interest
Penalties/late fees

Due from primary government
Unamortized bond issuance costs, net

Total Current Assets

Non-current assets:
Long-term portion of lcans receivable (net)

Total Non-current Assets

LIABILITIES

Total Assets

Current Liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt

Accrued interest payable
Loan escrow deposit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses -
Due fo primary governments - DCED

Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities:

Long-term debt, net of current portion and

STATEMENTS OF NET DEFICITS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

unamortized bond premiurn and discount

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL NET DEFICITS - UNRESTRICTED

Total Liabilities

2011

Page 4

2010

$ 649,214,245

$ 722767227

15,319,437 14,553,346
1,195,651 994,617
18,288 7,881
1,230,082 -
11,606,830 11,899,839
678,584,633 750,222,910
307,484,704 287,632,709
307,484,704 287,632,709

$ 986,089,237

$ 1,037,855,619

$ 39,285,000 $ 34,210,000
6,377,642 6,842,177
388,080 388,080

52,006 159,508

612,254 598,751
46,714,982 42,198,516

1,395,049,687

1,282,704 529

1,395,0490,687

1,282,704,529

1,441,764,669

1,324,903,045

$ (455,605,432)

$ (287,047,426)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Page 5
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET DEFICITS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010
2011 2010
Operating Income
Interest on loans $ 5,898,154 $ 5,138,479
Interest on investments 2,036,680 2,286,686
Fee income 227914 621,182
Interest from venture capital loan 286,491 45,089
Cperating Revenues before Provision for Loan Losses 8,449,239 8,081,436
Provision for loan losses 423,649 1,083,788
Net Operating Revenues 8,025,690 6,907,638
Operating Expenses
Administrative/operating expense 2,211,971 2,650,469
Grant expense 216,530,388 135,861,744
Loan guarantee expense 482,335 112,074
Total Operating Expenses 219,224,694 138,624,287
Operating Loss (211,199,004) {131,626,649)
Nongperating Income {(Expenses)
Transfers in from primary government 166,944,512 81,654 535
Interest on bonds {75,944,943) (58,447,233)
Amortization of bond premium/discount 310,473 174,982
Amaortization of bond issuance costs (609,045) (545,267)
Transfer to other Commonwealth component units {13,000,000) (13,000,000)
Transfers to primary government {25,000,000) (85,000,000)
Qther (149,999) 507,578
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 42,550,998 (74,655,405)
Decrease in net assets (168,648,006) (206,282,054)
Net Deficits - Beginning of Year (287,047,426) {80,765,372)
Net Deficits - End of Year $ (455695,432) § (287,047,426)

See accompanying notes fo the financial statements
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Page 6
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010
2011 2010
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Loan and fee receipts from customers 3 25,673,428 $ 23,667,597
Loan disbursements made to customers (40,663,944) {72,834,794)
Interest on investments 2,036,680 2,286,686
Cash paid for operating expenses (2,305,970) (2,334,228)
Cash paid for grant expenses (216,530,388) {135,861,744)
Cash paid for loan guarantees (482,335) {112,074)
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (232,272,529) {185,188,557)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Proceeds from bonds payable 153,584,595 538,970,724
Transfer to primary government and other Commonwealth compenent units (38,000,000) (88,000,000)
Transfer from primary government 165,714,430 81,654,535
Principal payments on bonds payable (36,180,000) (26,645,000)
Interest on bonds payable (76,408,478) (55,019,525) .
Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities 158,719,547 440,960,734
Increase {Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents {73,552,982) 255,772,177
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 722,767,227 466,995,050

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Operafing Activities:
Operating Loss
Adjustments to reconclle operating income to net cash
used in operating activities:
Effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities:

$ 6498,214245

$ 722767227

$ (211,189,004)

$ (131,626,649)

Loan disbursements (40,663,944) (72,834,794)
Loan repayments 19,523,622 18,330,460
Accrued interest receivable (201,034) (463,785)
Loan origination costs (51,312} -
Allowance for loan losses 423,549 1,003,798
Penalties/late fees (10,407) (3,828)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and due to primary government (93,999) 316,241

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities

3 (232,272,529)

$ (185.188,557)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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NOTICES

Page 7

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NCTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Organization

The Commonwealth Financing Authority (‘the Authority") is a body corporate and politic duly
organized by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (“the Commonwealth”) incorporated under
the Public Autherities and Quasi-Public Corporations Act of 2004 (Act), being the Act of April
1, 2004, P.L. 163, as amended by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority, by
virtue of the Act and its articles of incorporation, has all powers as sef forth in the Act including
those for creation and retention of jobs. The purpose of the Authority is to engage in financiai
assistance in the form of loans, loan guarantees, grants and private equity participating loans
to promote activities which lead to the use of alternative and clean energy, the creation and
retention of jobs within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the establishment of
economically viable Pennsylvania communities, the development of a stable tax base within
Pennsylvania communities, the reuse of abandoned industrial, commercial and other
previously utilized sites, the promotion and commercialization of Pennsylvania products and
services and investment of private capital in Pennsylvania communities to promote the health,
safety, employment, business opporfunities, economic activity and general welfare of the
people of the Commonwealth.

The Commonwealth appoints the members of the Authority's governing board, The
Commonwealth maintains the accounts and records of the Authority. In addition the
Commonwealth employs and supervises personnel o provide administrative services.
Therefore, the Authority is considered a component unit of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania.

The legislation creating the Authority as well as program specific guidslines establishes
certain activities to be carried out by the Autherity as follows:

. Business in Our Sites Program: provides financial assistance for preparation of
sites for future development.

. First Industries Program: provides ﬂnéncial assistance for projects related to
tourism and agriculture.

. Second Stage Loan Program: provides loan guarantees to commercial lending
institutions that make' loans to life sciences, advanced technology or
manufacturing businesses.

. New Pennsylvania Venture Guarantee Program: provides guarantees to venture
capital partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies which
are in early-stage or mid-stage development.

. Building Pennsylvania Program: provides loans to fund managers for investment
in real estate projects in Pennsylvania.

. Tax Increment Financing “TIF” Guarantee Program: provides guarantees for TIF
bonds or other indebtedness in accordance with the TiF Act of 1990.

. New Pennsylvania Venture Capital Investments Program: provides loans to
Venture Capital partnerships for investment in Pennsylvania companies.

. Penn Works Program: provides grants and loans for water supply and
wastewater infrastructure within Pennsylvania.

. HzO PA Program (Water and Sewer): provides for single-year or multi-year
grants to municipalities or municipal authorities to assist with the construction of
flood control projects, drinking water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer projects,
and the repair of high hazard unsafe dams.
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(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A. Organization (Continued)

. Solar Energy Program: provides financial assistance in the form of grant and
loan funds to promote the generation and use of solar energy and the
manufacture or assembly of solar equipment.

. Renewable Energy Program: provides financial assistance in the form of grant
and loan funds to promote the use of wind and geothermal energy.

. Alternative and Clean Energy Program: provides grant and loan funds to
encourage the implementation of alternative energy production projects and
clean energy projects.

. High Performance Buildings: provides grants and loans for the construction of
energy efficient buildings.

. Local Share Account: provides grants to support and enhance community and
economic well-being and mitigate the impact of gaming and related activities..

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The Authority follows Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). GAAP allows
specialized accounting for government entities, which is governed by pronouncements set by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Pronouncements set by the GASB
may differ from pronouncements set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board {(FASB).

The Authority is considered a special-purpose government since it is engaged sclely in
business-type activities under GASB Statement No. 34. The Authority’s financial statements
are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when they have been incurred. The statements are intended to report
the Authority as an economic unit that includes all measurable assets and liabilities, financial
and capital, of the Authority.

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. A
proprietary fund is used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services {o the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b)
where the governing body has decided that periodic determination or revenues earned,
expenses incurred, andfor net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The Authority follows the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE) Statement No.
34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis. Within the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, Statement No. 34 requires
operating income and expenses to be separated from non-operating income in order to report
net operating income. Operating income and expenses are defined as those activities directly
related to the Authority's primary business of providing empioyment through economic
development lending. Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and
expenses that are related to financing and investing types of activities and result from non-
exchange transactions, such as investment income/loss.

The Authority follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Govermmental Entities
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting for reporting and disclosure purposes. As permitted by
Statement No. 20, the Authority has elected not to apply Financial Accounting Standards
Board pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989 uniess GASB specifically adopts the
FASB Statement or Interpretation.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, include cash on
hand or on deposit in highly liguid financial debt instruments with a maturity of three months or
less at the date of purchase.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The ailowance for loan losses is a reserve account for possible future loan losses. Provision
for loan fosses is credited to the allowance account. Loan losses which are charged-off and
recoveries of previously charged-off loans are charged or credited directly to the allowance
account. The provision for loan losses is adjusted monthly at the rate of 2% of outstanding
loan balances at the respective month-end.

Interest Income
Interest income on cash equivalents and loans are recorded when earned.

Uncollectibie interest on loans that are contractually past due is charged off, or an allowance
established based on management's periodic evaluations. The allowance is established by a
charge-to-interest income equal to all previously accrued, and income is subsequently
recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received until, in management's
judgment, the borrower’s ability to make periodic interest and principal payments is back to
normal.

In addition to fixed interest arrangements, some loans contain provisions which provide lump
sum interest payments based upon certain conditions being met. The additional income is
recognized when eamed.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

The Authority recognizes loan origination fees and costs in accordance with FASB Accounting
Standards Codification 310-20, Receivables — Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (formerly
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 81, Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees and
Costs Associated with Originating or Acquiring Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases).

For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, $310,570 and $259,258, respectively, of net
deferrad fees are included in loans receivable.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs consist of legal, underwriting and other fees charged in connection with
the issuance of bond debt. The costs are amortized over the lives of the bonds, which range
from 20 to 30 years. The bonds mature through 2040. Amortization was $609,045 and
$545,267 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Utilization of Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.
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‘ COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Bond Premium and Discount

The difference between the cash received from bondholders at issuance and the amount due
o bondholders at maturity is recognized as bond premium or discount. Bond premium or
discount is amortized using the straight-line method over the lives of the bonds issued, which
approximates the interest method. )

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires managsment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
For comparative purposes, the prior year's financial statements have been reclassified to

conform to report classifications of the current year. The reclassifications had no effect on net
assets.

Adoption of_ Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements.

The Authority adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 59, “Financial Insfruments
Omnibus”®. The adoption of this statement had no effect on the financial statements.

. Pending Changes in Accounting Principles

In December 2009, the GASB issued Statement No. 57, "OPEB Measurements by Agent
Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans®. The Authority is required to adopt Statement
No. 57 for its fiscal year 2012 financial statements.

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 60, "Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Service Concession Arrangements”. The Authority is required.to adopt Statement No. 60
for its fiscal year 2013 financial statements.

fn November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 81, "The Financial Reporting Enlity:
Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34". The Authority is required
to adopt Statement No. 61 for its fiscal year 2013 financial statements.

In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 82, “Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements™. The Authority is required to adopt Statement No. 82 for its fiscal year 2013
financial statements.

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63 "Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows
of Resouices, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Positior”’. The Authority is required to
adopt Statement No. 63 for its fiscal year 2013 financial statements.

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 64 “Derivative Instruments: Application of
Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions — an amendment of GASB Stafement No. 53°. The
Authority is required to adopt Statement No. 64 for its fiscal year 2012 financial statements.

The Authority has not yet completed the various analyses required to estimate the financial
statement impact of these new pronouncements.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

FINANCIAL SUPPORT

The Authority reported a net deficit of $455,695,432 and $287,047,426 as of June 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively. The Authority’s business purpose will result in continued losses from operation
due to the disbursement of grant awards to help promote economic growth in the Commonwealth.
In addition, the Authority transferred part of its bond proceeds to the Commonwealth Department
of Environmental Protection and the Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority in the current
year and in prior years to the Commonwealth for the Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund (MELF)
program, which contributed to the deficit in net assets.

Through a service agreement with the Authority, the Commonwealth has pledged to seek annual
appropriations to pay the Authority’s annual debt service obligations. Therefore, factors listed
above do not raise doubt as to the Authority's ability to meet obligations when due.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June
30, 2011, due to the nature of the cash and cash equivalents balances, there is no custodial credit
risk. As of June 30, 2010, the Authority’s bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as
$250,000 was FDIC insured and $721,721,132 were uninsured and collateral was held by the
pledging bank’s trust department not in the Authority’s name.

Additionally, due to the short-term maturity of the cash equivalents, there is limited interest rate
risk.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Authority provides loans, in accordance with its enabling legislation and statutory
requirements to spur economic development activity within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
The loans have amortization periods not to exceed 20 years and bear interest at rates ranging
from 1% to 8% depending on the nature of the loan and the Authority prograrn from which the loan
was funded.

The Aﬁthority, through the New Venture Capital Investment Program, provides loans to venture
capital partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT GF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010
LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the outstanding balance of loans receivable were as follows:
2011

Current Long-term

Portion Portion Total
Lean receivable $ 15,617,733 $ 313,480,585 $ 329,078,318
Deferred loan origination fees - net 14,059 296,511 310,570
Allowance for [oan losses (312,355) (6,272,392) (6,584,747)
Balance, end of year $ 15,319,437 $ 307,484,704 $ 322,804,141

2010

Current Long-term

Portion Portion Total
Loan receivable $ 14,772,342 $ 293,315,653 $ 308,087,995
Deferred loan origination fees - net 9,841 249,417 259,258
Allowance for loan losses (228,837) {5,932,361) (6,161,198)
Balance, end of year $ 14,553,346 $ 287,632,709 $ 302,186,055

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 is as
follows:

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 6,161,198 $ 5,067,400
Provision for loan losses 423,54 1,093,798
Balance, end of year $ 6,584,747 $ 6,161,198

BONDS PAYABLE

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Beginning Due Within
Balance Additions Deductions Ending Balance One Year
Economic
revenue bonds $ 1313455000 $ 150,000,000 $ (36,180,000) $ 1,427,275000  $ 39,285,000
Bond premium 4,857,804 3,910,631 (368,412) 8,200,123 -
Bond discount (1,198,375) - 57,939 {1,140,436) -
Total $ 1,316,914529 § 153010631 % (36,400473) $ 1434334687 _$ 39,285,000
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010
BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)
Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2010:
Beginning Due Within One
Balance Additions Deductions Ending Balance Year

Economic

revenue bonds $ 798,100,000 $ 542000000 $ 26645000 $ 1,313,455000 $ 34,210,000
Bond premium 3,701,371 1,137,110 180,577 4,657,904 -
Bond discount (1,203,969) (5,584) (1,198,375) -
Total $ 800597402 § 543137110 $ 26,819,983 § 1,316,914529 $ 34,210,000

2011 2010

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds, issued $53,080,000 fixed rate, tax-
exempt revenue bonds, Series C-1 and $86,920,000, fixed rate,
federal taxable revenue bonds, Series C-2 at 2% - 3.4%,
interest payable semi-annually and principle payable annually
through June 1, 2040.

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,000,000 fixed rate,
federal taxable revenue bonds, Series A and $80,000,000 fixed
rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series B at .93% - 5.5%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through May 1, 2039.

Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, issued $400,000,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series D at 3.4% - 5.1%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through May 1, 2039.

Series 2009 Revenue Bonds, issued $50,000,000 fixed rate,
federal taxable revenue bonds, Series A and $50,000,000 fixed
rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series B at 3.0% - 6.4%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through June 1, 2031.

Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,

federally taxable revenus bonds, Series A at 3.1% - 5.2%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through June 1, 2027.

148,030,000 $

138,505,000 $

400,000,000 $

97,205,000 $

169,625,000 $
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(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

2011

Page 14

2010

Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixad rate,
federally taxable rovenue bonds, Series C at 4.9% - 5.2%,
infetest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through June 1, 2028. - $ 161,145,000
Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, issued $45,000,000 fixed rate,
tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $142,500,000 fixed
rate, federal taxable revenue bonds, Series B at 4.5% - 5.6%,
interest only payable semi-annually through June 1, 2026 and
principal payable annually through June 1, 2026. $ 158,720,000

Series 2005 Revenue Bonds, issued $52,500,000 fixaed ratas,
tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $125,000,000 fixed
rate, federally taxable revenue bonds, Series B at 4.5% -
5.3%, interest payable semi-annually and principal payable

$ 168,225,000

$ 165,375,000

3 161,405,000

annually through June 1, 2025. $ 154.045.000
Total Bonds Payable - Principle $ 1,427,275,000
Less current portion (39,285,000}
Unamortized bond premium 8,200,123
Unameortized bond discount : (1,140,436)

$ 1,313,455,000
(34,210,000)

4,657 904
{(1,198,375)

$ 1,395,049,687

3 1,282,704,529

Bond payable requirements subsequent to June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Principal
Maturities Interest
For the Years Ending June 30,
2012 $ 39,285,000 $ 76,531,705
2013 50,210,000 74,826,251
2014 ) 52,290,000 72,954,021
2015 54,570,000 70,585,946
2018 57,025,000 68,054,367
2017-2021 329,355,000 294,024,221
2022-20286 406,165,000 193,807,270
2027-2031 200,315,000 104,835,251
2032-2036 139,350,000 54,806,243
2037-2040 98,710,000 13,104,570
Total $ 1,427,275,000 $ 1,023,529,845
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010
BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)
Bond payable requirements subsequent to June 30, 2010 are as follows:
Principal
Maturities Interest
For the Years Ended June 30,
2011 $ 34,210,000 3 71,111,088
2012 36,400,000 68,910,785
2013 47,265,000 67,263,029
2014 49,255,000 65,167,236
2015 51,445,000 62,850,475
2016-2020 296,520,000 272,595,273
2021-2025 379,845,000 183,893,119
2026-2030 210,560,000 92,966,026
2031-2035 119,750,000 92,966,026
2036-2039 88,205,000 13,082,417
Total $ 1,313,455,000 $ 991,705,474

The Authority, with Commonwealth approval, issued the above noted revenue bonds to fund the
activities of the Authority. Repayments with respect to the revenue bonds are derived solely from
project revenues which are defined as annual appropriations and transfers by the Commonwealth
per the Official Statement. The Revenue Bonds described above are limited obligations of the
Authority and are considered non-recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to bondholders
beyond amounts received by the Authority from annual appropriations and transfers to the
Authority by the Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has not pledged its full faith and credit nor
the taxing power of the Commonweaith or any political subdivision for the payment of the
Authority’s Revenue Bonds and the payments by the Commonwealth to the Authority are subject
to annual appropriation and transfers of funds for such purposes by the General Assembly and
there is no assurance that such funds will be appropriated in any fiscal year. Repayments of loans
do not constitute project revenues.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, through the
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED) and the Deparfment -of
Environmental Protection (DEP) to provide administrative and operational support services for the
Authority. The Authority owns no capital assets; the employees performing services for the
Authority are DCED employees. As such, under the Memorandum of Understanding, the Authority
reimburses DCED for services rendered by DCED employees to the Authority. During the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the services provided by DCED and DEP to the Authority
and recorded as Administrative/Operating expenses fotaled $1,864,263 and $2,650,469,
respectively.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Authority received $109,038,921 and
581,654,535, respectively, in transfers from the Commonwealth to pay debt services with respect
to Revenue Bonds. See Note 5 for details with respect to the Revenue Bonds.

The Authority also received $47,904,591 and $0 in gaming monies from the Commonwealth to
fund approved projects in select areas of the state in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

The Authority transferred part of its bond proceeds to the Commonwealth Department of

Environment Protection and the Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority totaling
$38,000,000 and $98,000,000 for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

LINE OF CREDIT

In December 2009, the Authority entered into a secured line of credit with the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania Treasury Department, which, under a revolving credit agreement, is limited to
borrowings of $50,000,000. Under the revolving credit agreement, interest accrues on the
aggregate unpaid principle amount outstanding on the draws. The interest rate is the greater of
the rate of the United States Federal Funds Target Rate plus 75 basis points or the rate set by the
British Bankers Association for London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) for a six month term in
United States dollars plus 45 basis points. The interest rate is reset as of the 20™ of each month.
As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, no funds were drawn under the revolving credit agreement.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Autherity, through various economic development programs, provided loan guarantees as

follows:

2011 2010
First Industries loan guarantees $ 47,994,133 $ 37,797,428
Tax increment financing gaurantees 48,411,870 44,911,870
Second stage loan gaurantees 3,360,000 2,910,000
Venture capital gaurantees 187,500,000 187,500,000
Total Loan Gaurantees $ 297,266,103 $ 283,119,398

The Autherity has been called upon, from time to time with respect to loan guarantees, to make
principal or interest payments on behalf of the ultimate borrowers. Accordingly, expenses totaling
$482,335 and $112,074, have been reported in the Authority's financiai statements for loan
guarantees as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Through various Authority loan and grant programs to promote economic development within the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the Authority has approved loans, and grants of $47,580,997 and
$488,098,404, respectively, which have not been disbursed as of June 30, 2011.
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Zelenkofske Axelrod LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Commonweaith Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the financial statements of the business-ype activities of the COMMONWEALTH FINANCING
AUTHORITY (‘the AUTHORITY"}, a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the AUTHORITY's 2011 basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United State of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroiler Generai of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the AUTHORITY's internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the AUTHORITY’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the AUTHORITY's internal
control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in infemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A maferial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that thers is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the intarnal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the AUTHORITY's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed fests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, others within the

entity, federal awarding agencies and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

! Ansdossf L2

ZELENKOFSKE AXELROD LLC
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 30, 2011
Harrisburg Lehigh Valley Philadelphia Pitisburgh
830 Sir Thomas Court, Suite 100 1101 West Hamilton Street 2370 York Road, Suite A-5 3800 McKiight E. Drive, Suite 3805
Huarrisbirg, PA 17108 Allentown, PA 18101-1043 Jamison, PA 18929 Pittsburgh, PA 15237
717.561.8200 Fax 717.561.9202 610.871.5077 Fax 717.561.9202 2159182277  Fax 2159182302 412.367.7102 Fax 412.367.7103
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Zelenkofske Axelrod LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the COMMONWEALTH
FINANCING AUTHORITY ("the AUTHORITY"), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as of and
for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financiai statements are the responsibility of the AUTHORITY's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Ametica
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We helieve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our cpinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities of the AUTHORITY as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 13, 2012, on
our consideration of the AUTHORITY's internal control over financiai reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion en the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should
be considered in assessing the resuits of our audits.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2612 the AUTHORITY
adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement No. 57, “OPEB Measurements by
Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Empioyer Plans” and the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board's Statement No. 84, “Derivalive Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 53".

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis on pages 2 through 3 be presented to supplement the basic financiat statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economiic, or histarical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses fo our inquires, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Labomooke Aaboe! tt:C

ZELENKOFSKE AXELROD LLC

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 13, 2012

Harrisburg Lehigh Valley Philadelphia Pittsburgh
830 S5ir Thomas Court, Sutie 100 1107 West Hamilton Street 2370 York Road, Suite A-5 3800 McKnight E. Drive, Suite 3805
Harrisburg, PA 17109 Allentown, PA 18101-1043 Jmmison, PA 18929 Pittsburgh, PA 15237
717.561.9200 Fax 717.561.9202 610.871.5077 Fax 717.561.9202 215.918.2277 Fax 215.918.2302 412.367.7102 TFax 412.367.7103
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Commonwealth Financing Authority Page 2
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSICN AND ANALYSIS
Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

The , hereafter referred to as the “Authority,” is pleased to present its financial statements developed in compliance
with Statement of Govemnmental Accounting Standard No. 34, entitled “Basic Financial Statements — Management's
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Govemments® (hereafter GASB 34), and related standards. GASB 34
enhances information provided to the users of its financial statements. This section of the financial reporting package
presents our discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial performance during the years ended June 30, 2012
and 2011. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements that follow this section.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Over the past fiscal year, the Authority has approved 38 projects totaling $38,108,862 in funding under the Alternative
and Clean Energy Program, the Renewable Energy Program and the Solar Energy Program. [n total, the projects will
generate 699,201 megawatt hours annually and save 1,189,508 kBTU's. These programs provide funding to
promote the utilization, development and construction of alternative energy projects in the Commonwealth.

Over the past fiscal year, the Authority has approved 13 projects totaling $33,421,954 in funding under the Business
in Our Sites program which funds will assist in the development of 1,260 acres, 4,116,954 sq. ft of leasable space
and will create 3,672 jobs. This program provides funding to support the development of strategic econamic
development sites throughout the Commonwealth.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be read in conjunction with,
the basic audited financial statements. The MD&A represents management's examination and analysis of the
Authority's financial condition and performance. Summary financial statement data and other management tools
were used for this analysis.

The financial statements report information about the Authority using the full accrual method of accounting, as utilized
by similar business activities in the private sector. The financial statements include a Statement of Net Deficits; a
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Deficits; a Statement of Cash Flows; and Notes to the
Financial Statements.

The Statement of Net Deficits presents the financial position of the Autharity on a full accrual historical cost basis.
The Statement of Net Deficits also presents information on all of the Authority's assets and liabilities, with the
difference reported as nef deficits. Over time, increases and decreases in net deficits are one indicator of whether
the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

While the Statement of Net Deficits provides information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations at
year-end, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Deficits presents the results of the business-
type activities over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net deficits changed during the year.
All changes in net deficits are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless
of the timing of the related cash flows. This statement also provides certain information about the Authority's
recovery of its costs.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from operational, financing,
and investing activiies. This statement presenis cash receipt and cash disbursement information without
consideration of the earnings event when an obligation arises, or depreciation of capital assets.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that are essential to a full

understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes present information about the Authority’s
accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, long-term debt and subsequent events, if any.
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Commonwealth Financing Authority Page 3
{Component Unit of the Commenweaith of Pennsyivania)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Condensed Statements of Net Deficits

2012 2011 2010
Assets:
Current assets $ 450,693,586 $ 678,584,533 § 750,222,910
Long-term assets 307,401,520 307,484,704 287,632,709
Total assets 758,095,106 986,069,237 1,037,855,619
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 57,017,378 486,714,982 42,198,516
Long-term liabilities 1,344,464,445 1,395,049,687 1,282,704,529
Total liabilities 1,401,481,823 1,441,764,669 1,324,903,045
Total net deficit - unrestricted $ (643,386,717) $ (455,695,432 § (287,047,426)

The Authority did not issue any new bonds in 2012 after issuing bonds totaling $150 million in 2011. The bond
issuance was the primary cause for the increase in fotal liabilities of $117 million in 2011. In 2012, total kabilities
decreased by $40 million as a result of no new debt Issuances and principal payments made on existing debt. In
2012, the Authority's total assets declined by $228 million due to the transfer of $9 million to other Commonwealth
agencies for initiatives prescribed under legisiation and also due to $248 million in grant disbursements, particularly
H20 program grants. Due fo the nature of sconomic development grants and loans, some of which require
drawdowns, funding not immediately disbursed upon Board approval is held as cash and cash equivalents.
Administrative operating expenses increased as compared to the previous year by $0.7 million. The increase
cormresponds to the increased staff time necessary to review and process application for funding during 2612. Loan
Guarantee expense increased by $0.7 million in 2012 as the Authority was called on to pay demand notices.

The significant increase in the total net deficit is attributable to the $249 million in Authority assets disbursed as grant
proceeds, and the $8 million in assets transferred to the Ben Franklin Technology Development Partners. The
transfer of bond proceeds to these Governmentai entities was prescribed by legislation. Management acknowledges
but is not concemed with the annual net asset deficit. As an authority under which economic stimulus programs are
established, grants and transfers to other governmental entities are essential to achieve its mission.

Since inception, the Authority has issued eight revenue bonds totaling $1.542 billion. The Authority has a service
agreement with the Commonwealth of Psnnsylvania for the payment of the annual debt service through an annual
appropriation by the Commonweaith, and transfers from the Gaming Economic Development Tourism Fund.
However, there is no assurance that there will be sufficient funds appropriated annually by the Commonwealth.

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Deficits

2012 2011 2010
Qperating income 3 10,690,538 3 8,449,239 $ 8,091,436
Operating expenses {252,807,470) (219,374,693) (138,624,287)
Provision for loan losses (4,988,366) (423,549) (1,093,798)
Nonoperating income (expense),net 59,514,013 42,700,997 {74,655,405)
Increase (decrease) in net asset $ {187,691,285) & {168,648,006) § (206,282,054)

In 2012, operating income increased by $2.1 million as compared to 2011. The increase is atiributed to increased
interest on loans and venture capital investments. The Authority adjusts the loan loss reserve to account for at-risk
loans. As a result, the provision for loan losses increased by $4.6 million,

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, investors and creditors with a general overview of the
Authority's finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the money it receives. [f you have questions
about this report or need additional informaticn, contact the Commonwealth Financing Authority, 400 North Street,
Fourth Floor, Harrisburg, PA 17120.
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Page 4
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS QOF NET DEFICITS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
2012 2011
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 420,093,530 $ 649,214,245
Receivables:
Loans {net} 18,152,055 15,319,437
Accrued interest 1,483,188 1,195,651
Penalties/|ate fees - 18,288
Due from primary government - 1,230,082
Unamortized bond issuance cosis, net 10,964,813 11,606,830
Total Current Assets 450,693,586 678,584,533
Non-current assets;
Long-term portion of loans receivable (net) 307,401,520 307,484,704
Total Non-current Assets 307,401,520 307,484,704
Total Assets $ 758,095,106 $ 986,069,237
LIABILITIES
Gurrent Liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt 3 50,210,000 $ 39,285,000
Accrued interest payable 6,235,521 6,377,642
Loan escrow deposit - 388,080
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 16,000 52,006
Due to primary governments - DCED 555,857 612,254
Total Current Liabilities 57,017,378 46,714,982
Non-current Liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion and
unamoertized bond premium and discount 1,344,464,445 1,395,049,687
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,344 464 445 1,395,049,687
Total Liabilities 1,401,481,823 1,441,764,669
TOTAL NET DEFICITS - UNRESTRICTED $ (643,386,717) $ (455,695,432)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Page 5
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET DEFICITS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
2012 2011
Operating Income
Interest on loans $ 6,870,547 3 5,898,154
Intersst on investments 1,462,859 2,036,680
Fee income 417,953 227,914
Interest from venture capital loan 1,839,179 286,491
Operating Revenues before Provision for Loan Losses 10,590,538 8,449,239
Provision for loan losses 4,988,366 423,549
Net Operating Revenues 5,602,172 8,025,690
Operating Expenses
Administrative/operating expense 2,902,175 2,211,971
Grant expense 248,546,667 216,530,388
Loan guarantee expense 1,191,529 482,335
Other 167,099 149,698
Total Operating Expenses 252,807,470 219,374,693
Operating Loss (247,205,298) {211,349,003)
Nenoperating Income {(Expenses)
Transfers in from primary government 145,170,304 156,944,512
Interest on bonds (76,389,516) {75,944,943)
Amortization of bond premium/discount 375,242 310,473
Amortization of bond issuance costs (642,017) (609,045)
Transfer to other Commonwealth component units (8,000,000) {13,000,000)
Transfers to primary government (1,000,000) {25,000,000)
Totai Nonoperating Revenuss 59,514,013 42,700,997
Increase in net deficits (187,691,285) (168,648,006)
Net Deficits - Beginning of Year {455,695,432) {287,047,426)
Net Deficits - End of Year $ (643,386,717) $ (455,695,432)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Page 6
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
2012 2011
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Loan and fee receipts from customers $ 38,531,154 3$ 25,673,428
Loan disbursements made to customers (37,965,703) (40,663,944)
Interest on investments 1,462,859 2,036,680
Cash paid for operating expenses (2,994,578} (2,305,970)
Cash paid for grant expenses (248,546,667} (216,530,388)
Cash paid for loan guarantees (1,191,529} (482,335)
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities {250,704,464) (232,272,529)
Cash Flows from NMoncapital Financing Activities:
Proceeds from bonds payable- - 153,594,595
Transfer to primary govemment and other Commonwealth component units (9,000,000) {38,000,000)
Transfer from primary government 148,400,386 155,714,430
Principal payments on bonds payable (39,285,000) (36,180,000)
Interest on bonds payable (768,531,837) (76,409,478)
Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities 21,583,749 158,719,547
Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents {229,120,715) (73,552,982)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 649,214,245 722,767,227

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided By (Used In}
Operating Activities:
Operating Loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
used in operating activities:
Eifect of changes in cperating assets and liabilities:

$ 420,093,530

$ 649,214,245

$ (247,205,298)

$ (211,349,003)

Loan disbursements (37,410,524) (40,513,845)
Loan repayments 29,319,589 19,623,622
Loan escrow deposits (388,080) -
Accrued interest receivable (287,537) (201,034)
Loan origination costs 353,135 (51,312)
Allowance for [oan losses 4,988,366 423 549
Penalties/late fees 18,288 {10,407)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and due to primary government (92,403) (93,999)

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow [nformation
Noncash Noncapital Financing Activities:

% (250,704,464)

$ (232,272,529)

Amortization of bond premium/discount {naf) $ (375242) % (310,473)
Amortization of bond issuance costs 642 017 609,045
Total Noncash Noncapital Financing Activities $ 266,775 $ 298,572

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Page 7

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Organization

The Commonwealth Financing Authority (“the Authority”) is a body corporate and politic duty
organized by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ("the Commonwealth") incorporated under
the Public Authorities and Quasi-Public Corporations Act of 2004 (Act), being the Act of April
1, 2004, P.L. 163, as amended by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority, by
virtue of the Act and its articles of incorporation, has all powers as set forth in the Act including
those for creation and retention of jobs. The purpose of the Authority is to engage in financial
assistance in the form of loans, lcan guarantees, grants and private equity participating loans
to promote activities which lead to the use of aiternative and clean energy, the creation and
retention of jobs within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the establishment of
economically viable Pennsylvania communities, the development of a stable tax base within
Pennsylvania communities, the reuse of abandoned industrial, commercial and other
previously utifized sites, the promotion and commercialization of Pennsylvania products and
services and investment of private capital in Pennsylvania communities to promote the health,
safety, employment, business opportunities, economic activity and general welfare of the
people of the Commonwealth.

The Commonwealth appoints the members of the Authority's governing board. The
Commonwealth maintains the accounts and records of the Authority. In addition the
Commonwealth employs and supetvises personnel to provide administrative services.
Therefore, the Autharity is considered a component unit of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania.

The legislation creating the Authority as well as program specific guidelines establishes
cerfain activities to be carried out by the Authority as follows:

. Business in Qur Sites Program: provides financial assistance for preparation of
sites for future development.

. First Industries Program: provides financial assistance for projects related to
tourism and agriculture.

. Second Stage Loan Program: provides loan guaraniees to commercial lending
institutions that make loans to life sciences, advanced technology or
manufacturing businesses.

. New Pennsylvania Venture Guarantee Program: provides guarantees {o venture
capital parinerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies which
are in early-stage or mid-stage development.

. Building Pennsylvania Program: provides loans to fund managers for investment
in real estate projects in Pennsylvania.

. Tax Increment Financing “TIF* Guarantee Program: provides guarantees for TIF
bonds or other indebtedness in accordance with the TIF Act of 1990.

[} New Pennsylvania Venture Capital Investments Program: provides loans to
Venture Capital partnerships for investment in Pennsylvania companies.

. Penn Works Program: provides grants and loans for waler supply and
wastewater infrastructure within Pennsylvania.

. H.O PA Pragram (Water and Sewer): provides for single-year or muiti-year
grants to municipaiities or municipal authorities to assist with the construction of
fload control projects, drinking water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer projects,
and the repair of high hazard unsafe dams.
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Page 8
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A.  Organization (Continued)

. Solar Energy Program: provides financial assistance in the form of grant and
loan funds to promote the generation and use of solar energy and the
manufacture or assembly of solar equipment,

. Renewable Energy Program: provides financial assistance in the form of grant
and [oan funds to promote the use of wind and geothermal energy.

. Alternative and Clean Energy Program: provides grant and loan funds to
encourage the implementation of altemative energy production projects and
clean energy projects.

[ High Performance Buildings: provides grants and loans for the construction of
energy efficient buildings.

. Local Share Account: provides grants to support and enhance community and
economic well-being and mitigate the impact of gaming and related activities.

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The Authority follows Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). GAAP allows
specialized accounting for government entities, which is governed by pronouncements set by
the Govermnmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  Pronouncements set by the GASB
may differ from prenouncements set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB).

The Authority is considered a special-purpose government since it is engaged solely in
business-type activities under GASB Statement No. 34. The Authority’s financial statements
are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when they have been incurred. The statements are intended to report
the Authority as an economic unit that includes all measurable assets and liabilities, financial
and capital, of the Authority.

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a singls proprietary (enterprise) fund. A
proprietary fund is used to account for operations that are (a) financed and opsrated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of previding goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b}
where the governing body has decided that periodic determination or revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management conirol, accountability, or other purposes.

The Autherity follows the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ((GASB) Statement No.
34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis. Within the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Deficits, Statement No. 34 requires
operating income and expenses to be separated from non-operating income in order to report
net operating income or loss. Operating income and expenses are defined as those activities
directly related to the Authority's primary business of providing employment through economic
development lending. Non-cperating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and
expenses that are related to financing and investing types of activities and resuft from non-
exchange transactions, such as investment incomefloss.

The Authority follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) Statement No. 20,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting for reporting and disclosure purposes. As permitted by
Statement No. 20, the Authority has slected not to apply Financial Accounting Standards
Board pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989 unless GASB specificaily adopts the
FASB Statement or Interpretation.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, include cash on
hand or on deposit in highly liquid financiail debt instruments with a maturity of three months or
less at the date of purchase.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve account for possible future loan losses. Provision
for [oan losses is credited to the allowance account. Loan losses which are charged-off and
recoveries of previously charged-off loans are charged or credited directly to the allowance
account. The provision for loan losses s adjusted monthly at the rate of 2% of outstanding
loan balances at the respective month-end.

Interest Income
Interest income on cash equivalents and loans are recerded when earned.

Uncollectible interest on loans that are contractually past due is charged off, or an allowance
established based on management’s periodic evaluations. The ailowance is established by a
charge-to-interest income equal to all previously accrued, and income is subsequently
recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received until, in management's
judgment, the borrower's ability fo make periodic interest and principal payments is back to
normai.

In addition to fixed interest arrangements, some loans contain provisions which provide lump
sum interest payments based upon certain conditions being met. The additional income is
recognized when earnad.

Loan Crigination Fees and Costs

The Authority recognizes loan origination fees and costs in accordance with FASB Accounting
Standards Codification 310-20, Receivables — Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs {formerty
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 91, Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees and
Costs Associated with Qriginating or Acquiring Loans and initial Direct Costs of Leases).

For the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, {($42,565) and $310,570, respectively, of net
deferred {ees are included in loans receivabie.

Bond [ssuance Costs

Bond issuance costs consist of legal, underwriting and other fees charged in connection with
the issuance of bond debt. The costs are amortized over the lives of the bonds, which range
from 20 to 30 years. The bonds mature through 2040. Amortization was $642,017 and
$809,045 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Utilization of Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Bond Premium and Discount

The difference between the cash recsived from bondholders at issuance and the amount dus
to bondholders at maturity is recognized as bond premium or discount. Bond premium or
discount is amortized using the straight-line method over the lives of the bonds issued, which
approximates the interest method.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and ffabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

For comparative purposes, the prior year's financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to report classifications of the current year. The reclassifications had no effect on net
assets.

Adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

The Authority adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 57, "OPEB Measurements by
Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans®. The adoption of this statement had no
effect on previously reported amounts.

The Authority adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 64 “Derivative Instruments:
Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions =~ am amendment of GASB Statement
No. 53". The adoption of this statement had no effect on praviously reported amounts.

. Pending Changes in Accounting Principles

In Novernber 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 60, “Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Service Concession Arrangements”. The Authotity is required to adopt Statement No. 60
for its fiscal year 2013 financial statements.

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34°. The Authority is required
to adopt Statement No. 61 for its fiscal year 2013 financial statements.

In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements”. The Authority is required to adopt Statement No. 62 for its fiscal year 2013
financial statements.

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Quitflows
of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position”, The Authority is required to
adopt Statement No. 63 for its fiscal year 2013 financial statements.

In March 2012, the GASB issued a Statement No. 65, “ltems Previously Reporfed as Assets
and Liabilities”. The Authority is required to adopt statement No. 65 for its fiscai year 2014
financial statements.

In March 2012, the GASB issued a Statement No. 66, “Technical Corrections — 2012 — An

Amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62”. The Autharity is required to adopt
statement No. 65 for its fiscal year 2014 financial statements.
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

NOTICES

Page 11
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHCRITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M. Pending Changes in Accounting Pringiples (Continued)

In June 2012, the GASB issued a Statement No. 67, “Financial Reporting for Pension Pians —
an amendment of GASB Sfatement No. 25”. The Authority is required to adopt statement No.
67 for its fiscal year 2014 financial statements.

In June 2012, the GASB issuad a Statement No. 88, "Accounting and Financial Reporting —
an amendment of GASB Staternent No. 27*. The Authority is required to adopt statement No.
68 for its fiscal year 2015 financial statements.

The Authority has not yet completed the various analyses required to estimate the financial
statement impact of these new pronouncements.

FINANCIAL SUPPQORT

The Authority reported a net deficit of $643,386,717 and $455,695,432 as of June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively. The Authority’s business purpose will result in continued losses from operation
due to the dishursement of grant awards to help promote economic growth in the Commanwealth.
In addition, the Authority transferred part of its bond proceeds to the Commonwealth Department
of Environmental Protection and the Ben Franklin Technology Development Autharity in the current
year and in priar years to the Commonwealih for the Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund (MELF)
program, which contributed to the deficit in net assats.

Through a service agreement with the Authority, the Commonwealth has piedged to seek annual
appropriations to pay the Authority’s annual debt service obligations. Therefore, factors listed
above do not raise doubt as to the Authority's ability to meet obligaticns when due.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June
30, 2012 and 2011, due to the nature of the cash and cash equivalents balances, there is no
custodial credit risk.

Additionally, due to the short-term maturity of the cash equivalents, there is limited interest rate
risk.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Authority provides loans, in accordance with its enabling legislation and statutory
requirements to spur economic development activity within the Commonweaith of Pennsylvania.
The loans have amortization periods not to exceed 20 years and bear interest at rates ranging
from 1% to 8% depending on the nature of the loan and the Authority program from which the loan
was funded.

The Authority, through the New Venfure Capitai Investment Program, provides loans to venture
capital partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

1715

At June 30, 2012 and 2011, the outstanding balance of loans receivable were as follows:

Loan receivable

Deferred loan origination fees - net
Allowance for loan losses
Balance, end of year

Loan receivable
Deferred loan origination fees - net

Allowance for loan losses
Balance, end of year

Page 12
2012
Current Long-term
Portion Portion Total
$ 18,524,920 § 318,644,333 § 337,169,253
(2,367) (40,198) (42,565)
{370,498) (11,202,615) (11,573,113}
$ 18,152,055 $ 307,401,520 $ 325,553,575
2011
Current Long-term
Portion Portion Total
$ 15,617,733 $ 313,460,585 $ 329,078,318
14,059 296,511 310,570
(312,355) (6,272,392) (6,584,747)
$ 15,319,437 $ 307,484,704 $ 322,804,141

An analysis of the allowance for joan losses for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as

follows;

Balance, beginning ofyear
Provision for loan losses

Balance, end of year

BONDS PAYABLE

2012

2011

$ 6,584,747 $

4,988,366

6,161,198
423,548

$ 11,573,113 $

6,584,747

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Beginning Due Within
Balance Additions Deductions Ending Balance One Year
Economic
revenue bonds $ 1,427,275000 § - § (39,285000) § 1,387,990,000 $ 50,210,000
Bond premium 8,200,123 - (433,182) 7,766,941 -
Bond discount {1,140,436) - 57,940 {1,082,496) -
Total § 1434334687 3 - $ (39.660,242) $ 1,304,674,445  §$ 50,210,000
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NOTE &:

NOTICES

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY

Page 13

(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Beginning

Balance Addttions

Deductions

Ending Balance

Due Within
One Year

Economic
revenue bonds
Bond premium

Bond discount

$ 1,313,455000 $ 150,000,000

4,657,904 3,910,631
{1,198,375) -

b (36,180,000)

(368,412)
57,939

$ 1,427,275,000

8,200,123
(1,140,436)

$ 39,285,000

Total $ 1,316,314529 $ 153,910,631

5 (36,490,473)

$ 1,434,334.687

$ 39,285,000

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds, issued $53,080,000 fixed rate, tax-
exempt revenue bonds, Series C-1 and $96,820,000, fixed rate,
federal taxable revenue bonds, Series C-2 at 2% - 3.4%,
interest payable semi-annually and principle payable annually
through June 1, 2040.

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,000,000 fixed rate,
federal taxable revenue bonds, Series A and $80,000,000 fixed
rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series B at .93% - 5.5%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through May 1, 2039.

Series 2009 Revenue Bonds, issued $400,000,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series D at 3.4% - 5.1%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annuaily
through May 1, 2039.

Series 2009 Revenue Bonds, issued $50,000,000 fixed rate,
federal taxable revenue bonds, Series A and $50,000,000 fixed
rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series B at 3.0% - 6.4%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through June 1, 2031.

Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series A at 3.1% - 5.2%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through June 1, 2027.

2012

2011

3

$

$

$

145,145,000 $

134,260,000 $

400,000,000 5

94,330,000 5

162,540,000 $
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxabis revenue bonds, Series C at 4.9% - 5.2%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through June 1, 2026.

Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $45,000,000 fixed rate,
tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $142,500,000 fixad
rate, federal taxable revenue bonds, Series B at 4.5% - 5.6%,
interest only payable semi-annually through June 1, 2026 and
principal payable annually through June 1, 2026.

Series 2005 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,500,000 fixed rate,
tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $125,000,000 fixed
rate, federally taxabie revenue bonds, Series B at 4.5% -
5.3%, interest payable semi-annually and principal payabie
annually through June 1, 2025,

Total Bonds Payable - Principle
Less current portion
Unamortized bond premium
Unamortized bond discount

2012

Page 14

2011

$ 153,715,000

$ 151,690,000

$ 146,310,000

161,145,000

158,720,000

154,045,000

$ 1,387.990,000
(50,210,000)
7,766,941
(1,082,496)

1,427,275,000
(39,285,000)
8,200,123

(1,140,436)

$ 1,344,464.445

1,385,049,687

Bond payable requirements subsequent to June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Principal
Maturities Interest
Forthe Years Ending June 30,
2013 3 50,210,000 74,826,251
2014 52,290,000 72,954,021
2015 54,570,000 70,585,946
2016 57,025,000 68,054,367
2017 59,655,000 63,509,188
2018-2022 345,920,000 267,066,553
2023-2027 379,345,000 161,328,847
2028-2032 184,950,000 88,431,574
2031-2037 134,305,000 42,306,537
2038-2040 69,720,000 4,985,390
Total $ 1,387,990,000 914,048,674
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NOTE &:

NOTE 6:

NOTICES

Page 15
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
{COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)
Bond payable requirements subsequent to June 30, 2011 are as follows:
Principal
Maturities Interest
For the Years Ended June 30,
2012 $ 39,285,000 $ 76,531,705
2013 50,210,000 74,826,251
2014 52,290,000 72,954,021
2015 54,570,000 70,585,948
2016 57,025,000 68,054,367
2017-2021 329,355,000 294,024,221
2022-2026 406,165,000 193,807,270
2027-2031 200,315,000 104,835,251
2032-2036 139,350,000 54,806,243
2037-2040 98,710,000 13,104,570
Total $ 1,427,275,000 $ 1,023,529,845

The Authority, with Commonwealth approval, issued the above noted revenue honds to fund the
activities of the Authority. Repayments with respect to the revenue bonds are derived salely from
project revenues which are defined as annual appropriations and transfers by the Commonwealth
per the Official Statement. The Revenue Bonds described above are limited obligations of the
Authority and are considered non-recourse, as the Authority is not obiigated to bondholders
beyond amounts received by the Authority from annual appropriations and transfers to the
Authority by the Commonweatth. The Commonwealth has not pledged its full faith and credit nor
the taxing power of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision for the payment of the
Authority’s Revenue Bonds and the payments by the Commonwealth to the Authority are subject
to annual appropriation and transfers of funds for such purposes by the General Assembly and
there is no assurance that such funds will be appropriated in any fiscal year. Repayments of loans
do not constitute project revenues.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, through the
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED) and the Depariment of
Environmental Protection (DEP) to provide administrative and operational support services for the
Authority. The Authority owns no capital assets; the employees performing services for the
Authority are DCED employees. As such, under the Memorandum of Understanding, the Authority
reimburses DCED for services rendered by DCED employees to the Autharity. During the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the services provided by DCED and DEP to the Authority
and recorded as Administrative/Operafing expenses totaled $2,742,647 and $1,864,263,
respectively.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Authority received $115,816,425 and
$109,039,921, respectively, in transfers from the Commonwealth to pay debt services with respect
to Revenue Bonds. See Note 5 for details with respect to the Revenue Bonds.

The Authority alsc received $29,353,879 and $47,904,591 in gaming monies from the
Commonwealth to fund approved projects in select areas of the state in the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively,

The Authority transferred part of its bond proceeds to the Commonwealth Department of

Environment Protection and the Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority totaling
$9,000,000 and $38,000,000 for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Page 16

COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

LINE OF CREDIT

In December 2008, the Authority entered into a secured line of credit with the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania Treasury Deparfment, which, under a revolving credit agreement, is limited to
borrowings of $50,000,000. Under the revolving credit agreement, interest accrues on the
aggregate unpaid principle amount outstanding on the draws. The interest rate is the greater of
the rate of the United States Federal Funds Target Rate plus 75 basis points or the rate set by the
British Bankers Association for London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) for a six month term in
United States dollars plus 45 basis points. The interest rate is reset as of the 20" of each month.
The line of credit expired as of December 28, 2011, the Authority did not extend or obtain a new
line of credit. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, no funds were drawn under the revolving credit
agreement.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Authority, through various economic development programs, provided loan guarantees as
follows:

2012 2011
First Industries loan guaranteas $ 47,625,633 $ 47,994,133
Tax increment financing gaurantees 38,500,000 48,411,970
Second stage loan gaurantees 1,485,000 3,360,000
Venture capital gaurantees 197,500,000 197,500,000
Total Loan Gaurantees $ 285,110,633 $ 207,266,103

The Authority has been called upon, from time to time with respect to loan guarantees, to make
principal or interest payments on behalf of the ultimate borrowers. Accordingly, expenses totaling
$1,191,529 and $482,335, have been reported in the Authority’s financial statements for loan
guarantees as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Through various Autherity loan and grant programs to promote economic development within the

Commonwealth of Pennsyivania, the Authority has approved loans, and grants of $53,855,635 and
$334,044,359, respectively, which have not been disbursed as of June 30, 2012.
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Page 17

Zelenkofske Axelrod LLC

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of the COMMONWEALTH FINANCING
AUTHORITY ("the AUTHORITY"), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the AUTHORITY's basic financial statements and have issusd our
report thereon dated September 13, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generaily
accepted in the United State of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the AUTHORITY is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporiing. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the AUTHORITY's internal controi over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpoese of expressing our opinion on the
financial staternents, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the AUTHORITY's
tniernal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
AUTHORITYs intemnal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
migstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficienciss, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corracted on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal controi over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reperting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the AUTHORITY’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, others within the

entity, federal awarding agencies and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Fbndyrdedl, Aabood! 12

ZELENKOFSKE AXELRCODLLC
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 13, 2012
Harrisburg Lehigh Valley Philadelphia Pittsburgh
830 Sir Thomas Court, Suite 100 1101 West Hamilton Street 2370 York Road, Suite A-5 3800 McKnight E. Drive, Suite 3805
Harrisburg, PA 17109 Allentown, PA 18101-1043 Jmimiison, PA 18929 Pittsburgh, PA 15237
717.561.9200 Fax 717.561.9202  610.871.5077 Fax 717.561.9202 215918.2277  Fax 215.918.2302 472.367.7102  Fax 412.367.7103
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Zelenkofske Axelrod LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the COMMONWEALTH
FINANCING AUTHORITY (“the AUTHORITY"), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as of and
for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the business-type activities of the Authority as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in financial position
and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, the Authority adopted
the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board’'s Statement No. 60, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements”, Statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and 34’, Statement No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements”, and Statement No.
63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position”. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Harrisburg Lehigh Valley Philadelphia Pittsburgh
830 Sir Thomas Court, Suite 100 1101 West Hamilton Street 2370 York Road, Suite A-5 3800 McKnight E. Drive, Suite 3805
Harrisburg, PA 17109 Allentown, PA 18101-1043 Jamison, PA 18929 Pittsburgh, PA 15237
717.561.9200 Fax 717.561.9202  610.871.5077 Fax 717.561.9202 215.918.2277  Fax 215.918.2302 412.367.7102 Fax 412.367.7103
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management'’s discussion
and analysis on pages 3 through 5 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management'’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 2, 2013, on our
consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

A4 bt Al 2L

ZELENKOFSKE AXELROD LLC

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
October 2, 2013
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Commonwealth Financing Authority Page 3
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

The Commonwealth Financing Authority, hereafter referred to as the “Authority,” is pleased to present its financial
statements developed in compliance with Statement of Governmental Accounting Standard No. 34, entitled “Basic
Financial Statements — Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments” (hereafter GASB
34), and related standards. GASB 34 enhances information provided to the users of its financial statements. This
section of the financial reporting package presents our discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial
performance during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority’s
financial statements that follow this section.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Over the past fiscal year, the Authority adopted guidelines for six new grant programs created through Act 13 of
2012. Over 300 applications were received requesting more than $60 million for flood mitigation, orphaned and
abandoned well plugging, greenways trails and recreation, watershed restoration and protection, abandoned mine
drainage abatement and treatment, and baseline water quality projects.

The Authority also solicited applications for the PennWorks Program. The Authority received 104 applications
requesting over $262 million for water and sewer projects that directly support job creation and private investment in
the Commonwealth.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be read in conjunction with,
the basic audited financial statements. The MD&A represents management's examination and analysis of the
Authority’s financial condition and performance. Summary financial statement data and other management tools
were used for this analysis.

The financial statements report information about the Authority using the accrual method of accounting, as utilized by
similar business activities in the private sector. The financial statements include a Statement of Net Position; a
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; a Statement of Cash Flows; and Notes to the
Financial Statements.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Authority on an accrual cost basis. The
Statement of Net Position also presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
reported as net position. Over time, incr and decreases in net position are one indicator of whether the
financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

While the Statement of Net Position provides information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations
at year-end, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the
business-type activities over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position changed during
the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. This statement also provides certain information about the
Authority’s recovery of its costs.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from operational, financing,
and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipt and cash disbursement information without
consideration of the earnings event when an obligation arises or depreciation of capital assets.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that are essential to a full

understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes present information about the Authority’s
accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, long-term debt and subsequent events, if any.
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Commonwealth Financing Authority Page 4
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Condensed Statements of Net Position

2013 2012 2011
Assets:
Current assets $ 660,409,830 $ 450,693,586 $ 678,584,533
Long-term assets 305,606,245 307,401,520 307,484,704
Total assets 966,016,075 758,095,106 986,069,237
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 68,452,494 57,017,378 46,714,982
Long-term liabilities 1,658,056,920 1,344,464,445 1,395,049,687
Total liabilities 1,726,509,414 1,401,481,823 1,441,764,669
Total net position — unrestricted $ (760,493,339) $ (643,386,717) $ (455,695,432)

The Authority issued new bonds in 2013, totaling $330 million. The bond issuance was the primary cause for the
increase in total liabilities of $325 million in 2013, net of the principal payments made during the year on the
Authority’s long-term debt liabilities. The issuance of the 2013 bonds is also the primary reason for the increase of
$208 million in total assets, net of grant disbursements, and transfers to the Commonwealth, and other
Commonwealth component units. Due to the nature of economic development grants and loans, some of which
require drawdowns, funding not immediately disbursed upon Board approval is held as cash, cash equivalents, or
authorized investments.

In 2012, total liabilities decreased by $40 million as a result of no new debt issuances and principal payments made
on existing debt. The decrease in total assets of $228 million in 2012 can be attributed to transfers of $9 million to
other Commonwealth agencies, as well as disbursements of $249 in the form of grants during 2012.

The significant decrease in the total net position in 2013 is attributable to the $168 million in Authority assets
disbursed in the form of grants, $20 million in assets transferred to the Commonwealth, and other Commonwealth
component units, and interest expense of $81 million on the Authority’s outstanding bonds; offset by transfers of $27
million of gaming monies from the Commonwealth to fund approved projects, and transfers of $120 million from the
Commonwealth for debt service payments related to the Authority’s outstanding bonds . The transfer of bond
proceeds to these Governmental entities was prescribed by legislation. As an authority under which economic
stimulus programs are established, grants and transfers to other governmental entities are essential to achieve its

mission.

Since inception, the Authority has issued ten revenue bonds totaling $1.872 billion. The Authority has a service
agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for the payment of the annual debt service through an annual
appropriation by the Commonwealth, and transfers from the Gaming Economic Development Tourism Fund.
However, there is no assurance that there will be sufficient funds appropriated annually by the Commonwealth.

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

2013 2012 2011
Operating income $ 10,386,165 $ 10,590,538 $ 8,449,239
Operating expenses (174,089,439) (252,807,470) (219,374,693)
Provision for loan losses 98,046 (4,988,366) (423,549)
Net Nonoperating revenues 46,498,606 59,514,013 42,700,997
Decrease in net position $ (117,106,622) $ (187,691,285) $ (168,648,006)

In 2013, operating expenses decreased by $79 million due to a decrease of $81 million in grant disbursements and
offset slightly by $2 million increase in loan guarantee expense. The decrease in net nonoperating revenues can be
attributed to additional interest expense of $4 million related to the 2013 bond issuances, as well as an increase of $9
million in net transfers to the Commonwealth and related component units.
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Commonwealth Financing Authority Page 5
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

In 2012, operating income increased by $2 million as compared to 2011. The increase is attributed to increased
interest on loans and venture capital investments.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, investors and creditors with a general overview of the
Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions

about this report or need additional information, contact the Commonwealth Financing Authority, 400 North Street,
Fourth Floor, Harrisburg, PA 17120.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Loans (net)
Accrued interest
Unamortized bond issuance costs, net

Total Current Assets

Non-current assets:
Long-term portion of loans receivable (net)

Total Non-current Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accrued interest payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Due to primary governments - DCED
Current portion of long-term debt

Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion and
unamortized bond premium and discount

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

TOTAL NET POSITION - UNRESTRICTED

Page 6

2013 2012
$ 629,209,439 $§ 420,093,530
17,041,572 18,152,055
1,815,165 1,483,188
12,343,654 10,964,813
660,409,830 450,693,586
305,606,245 307,401,520
305,606,245 307,401,520
966,016,075 758,095,106
12,167,546 6,235,521
- 16,000
414,948 555,857
55,870,000 50,210,000
68,452,494 57,017,378
1,658,056,920 1,344,464,445
1,658,056,920 1,344,464,445
1,726,509,414 1,401,481,823
$ (760,493,339) _$ (643,386,717)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Page 7
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
Operating Income
Interest on loans $ 7,531,547 $ 6,870,547
Interest on investments 1,127,996 1,462,859
Fee income 145,309 417,953
Interest from venture capital loan 1,553,580 1,839,179
Other Income 27,733 -
Operating Revenues before Provision for Loan Losses 10,386,165 10,590,538
Provision for loan losses (98,046) 4,988,366
Net Operating Revenues 10,484,211 5,602,172
Operating Expenses
Administrative/operating expense 2,915,586 2,902,175
Grant expense 167,900,238 248,546,667
Loan guarantee expense 2,734,748 1,191,529
Other 538,867 167,099
Total Operating Expenses 174,089,439 252,807,470
Operating Loss (163,605,228) (247,205,298)
Nonoperating Income (Expenses)
Transfers in from primary government 147,021,780 145,170,304
Interest on bonds (80,758,277) (76,389,516)
Amortization of bond premium/discount 913,803 375,242
Amortization of bond issuance costs (678,700) (642,017)
Transfer to other Commonwealth component units (6,000,000) (8,000,000)
Transfers to primary government (14,000,000) (1,000,000)
Total Nonoperating Revenues 46,498,606 59,514,013
Decrease in net position (117,106,622) (187,691,285)
Net Position - Beginning of Year (643,386,717) (455,695,432)
Net Position - End of Year $ (760,493,339) $ (643,386,717)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Loan and fee receipts from customers $ 39,826,679 $ 38,531,154
Loan disbursements made to customers (28,463,283) (37,965,703)
Interest on investments 1,127,996 1,462,859
Cash paid for operating expenses (3,072,495) (2,994,578)
Cash paid for grant expenses (167,900,238) (248,546,667)
Cash paid for loan guarantees (2,734,748) (1,191,529)
Other cash receipts 27,733 -
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (161,188,356) (250,704,464)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Proceeds from bonds payable 330,000,000 .
Transfer to primary government and other Commonwealth component units (20,000,000) (9,000,000)
Transfer from primary government 147,021,780 146,400,386
Bond Premium 40,376,278 -
Bond Issue Costs (2,057,541) -
Principal payments on bonds payable (50,210,000) (39,285,000)
Interest on bonds payable (74,826,252) (76,531,637)
Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities 370,304,265 21,583,749
Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents 209,115,909 (229,120,715)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 420,093,530 649,214,245
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 629,209,439 $ 420,093,530
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Used In
Operating Activities:
Operating Loss $ (163,605,228) $ (247,205,298)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
used in operating activities:
Effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Loan disbursements (27,924,416) (37,410,524)
Loan repayments 30,810,079 29,319,589
Loan escrow deposits - (388,080)
Accrued interest receivable (331,977) (287,537)
Loan origination costs 118,141 353,135
Allowance for loan losses (98,046) 4,988,366
Penalties/late fees - 18,288
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and due to primary government (156,909) (92,403)
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities $ (161,188,356) $§ (250,704,464)
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Noncash Noncapital Financing Activities:
Amortization of bond premium/discount (net) $ (913,803) $ (375,242)
Amortization of bond issuance costs 678,700 642,017
Total Noncash Noncapital Financing Activities $ (235,103) $ 266,775

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Organization

The Commonwealth Financing Authority (“the Authority”) is a body corporate and politic duly
organized by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (“the Commonwealth”) incorporated under
the Public Authorities and Quasi-Public Corporations Act of 2004 (Act), being the Act of April 1,
2004, P.L. 163, as amended by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority, by virtue
of the Act and its articles of incorporation, has all powers as set forth in the Act including those
for creation and retention of jobs. The purpose of the Authority is to engage in financial
assistance in the form of loans, loan guarantees, grants and private equity participating loans
to promote activities which lead to the use of alternative and clean energy, the creation and
retention of jobs within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the establishment of economically
viable Pennsylvania communities, the development of a stable tax base within Pennsylvania
communities, the reuse of abandoned industrial, commercial and other previously utilized sites,
the promotion and commercialization of Pennsylvania products and services and investment of
private capital in Pennsylvania communities to promote the health, safety, employment,
business opportunities, economic activity and general welfare of the people of the
Commonwealth.

The Commonwealth appoints the members of the Authority’s governing board. The
Commonwealth maintains the accounts and records of the Authority. In addition the
Commonwealth employs and supervises personnel to provide administrative services.
Therefore, the Authority is considered a component unit of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania.

The legislation creating the Authority as well as program specific guidelines establishes certain
activities to be carried out by the Authority as follows:

. Business in Our Sites Program: provides financial assistance for preparation of
sites for future development.

. First Industries Program: provides financial assistance for projects related to
tourism and agriculture.

. Second Stage Loan Program: provides loan guarantees to commercial lending
institutions that make loans to life sciences, advanced technology or
manufacturing businesses.

. New Pennsylvania Venture Guarantee Program: provides guarantees to venture
capital partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies which
are in early-stage or mid-stage development.

. Building Pennsylvania Program: provides loans to fund managers for investment
in real estate projects in Pennsylvania.

. Tax Increment Financing “TIF” Guarantee Program: provides guarantees for TIF
bonds or other indebtedness in accordance with the TIF Act of 1990.

. New Pennsylvania Venture Capital Investments Program: provides loans to
Venture Capital partnerships for investment in Pennsylvania companies.

. Penn Works Program: provides grants and loans for water supply and
wastewater infrastructure within Pennsylvania.

. H>.O PA Program (Water and Sewer): provides for single-year or multi-year
grants to municipalities or municipal authorities to assist with the construction of
flood control projects, drinking water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer projects,
and the repair of high hazard unsafe dams.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A. Organization (Continued)

. Solar Energy Program: provides financial assistance in the form of grant and loan
funds to promote the generation and use of solar energy and the manufacture or
assembly of solar equipment.

. Renewable Energy Program: provides financial assistance in the form of grant
and loan funds to promote the use of wind and geothermal energy.

. Alternative and Clean Energy Program: provides grant and loan funds to
encourage the implementation of alternative energy production projects and
clean energy projects.

. High Performance Buildings: provides grants and loans for the construction of
energy efficient buildings.

. Local Share Account: provides grants to support and enhance community and
economic well-being and mitigate the impact of gaming and related activities.

. Act 13 Program: provides grants for flood mitigation, orphaned and abandoned
well plugging, greenways trails and recreation, watershed restoration and
protection, abandoned mine drainage abatement and treatment, and baseline
water quality projects.

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The Authority follows Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). GAAP allows
specialized accounting for government entities, which is governed by pronouncements set by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Pronouncements set by the GASB
may differ from pronouncements set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB).

The Authority is considered a special-purpose government since it is engaged solely in
business-type activities under GASB Statement No. 34. The Authority’s financial statements
are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when they have been incurred. The statements are intended to report
the Authority as an economic unit that includes all measurable assets and liabilities, financial
and capital, of the Authority.

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. A
proprietary fund is used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b)
where the governing body has decided that periodic determination or revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The Authority follows the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis. Within the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Statement No. 34 requires
operating income and expenses to be separated from non-operating income in order to report
net operating income or loss. Operating income and expenses are defined as those activities
directly related to the Authority’s primary business of providing employment through economic
development lending. Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and
expenses that are related to financing and investing types of activities and result from non-
exchange transactions, such as investment income/loss.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, include cash on
hand or on deposit in highly liquid financial debt instruments with a maturity of three months or
less at the date of purchase.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve account for possible future loan losses. Provision
for loan losses is credited to the allowance account. Loan losses which are charged-off and
recoveries of previously charged-off loans are charged or credited directly to the allowance
account. The provision for loan losses is adjusted monthly at the rate of 2% of outstanding
loan balances at the respective month-end.

Interest Income
Interest income on cash equivalents and loans are recorded when earned.

Uncollectible interest on loans that are contractually past due is charged off, or an allowance
established based on management's periodic evaluations. The allowance is established by a
charge-to-interest income equal to all previously accrued, and income is subsequently
recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received until, in management’s
judgment, the borrower’s ability to make periodic interest and principal payments is back to
normal.

In addition to fixed interest arrangements, some loans contain provisions which provide lump
sum interest payments based upon certain conditions being met. The additional income is
recognized when earned.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

The Authority recognizes loan origination fees and costs in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 62 “Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements”.

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, ($160,706) and ($42,565), respectively, of net
deferred fees are included in loans receivable.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs consist of legal, underwriting and other fees charged in connection with
the issuance of bond debt. The costs are amortized over the lives of the bonds, which range
from 20 to 30 years. The bonds mature through 2042. Amortization was $678,700 and
$642,017 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Utilization of Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L.

Bond Premium and Discount

The difference between the cash received from bondholders at issuance and the principal
amount due to bondholders at maturity is recognized as bond premium or discount. Bond
premium or discount is amortized using the straight-line method over the lives of the bonds
issued, which approximates the interest method.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

For comparative purposes, certain prior year financial statement amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

The Authority adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 60, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements’. The adoption of this statement had no
effect on previously reported amounts.

The Authority adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 61 “The Financial Reporting
Entity Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34’". The adoption of this
statement had no effect on previously reported amounts.

The Authority adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 62, “Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB
and AICPA Pronouncements”. The adoption of this statement had no effect on previously
reported amounts.

The Authority adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position”. The
adoption of this statement resulted in replacing the term “net assets” with the term “net
position”.

. Pending Changes in Accounting Principles

In March 2012, the GASB issued a Statement No. 65, “ltems Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities”. The Authority is required to adopt statement No. 65 for its fiscal year 2014
financial statements.

In March 2012, the GASB issued a Statement No. 66, “Technical Corrections — 2012 — An

Amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62”. The Authority is required to adopt
statement No. 66 for its fiscal year 2014 financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M. Pending Changes in Accounting Principles (Continued)

In June 2012, the GASB issued a Statement No. 67, “Financial Reporting for Pension Plans —
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25”. The Authority is required to adopt statement No.
67 for its fiscal year 2014 financial statements.

In June 2012, the GASB issued a Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27”. The Authority is required to adopt statement No. 68
for its fiscal year 2015 financial statements.

In January 2013, the GASB issued a Statement No. 69, “Government Combinations and
Disposals of Government Operations”. The Authority is required to adopt statement No. 69 for
its fiscal year 2015 financial statements.

In April 2013, the GASB issued a Statement No. 70, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees”. The Authority is required to adopt statement No. 70 for
its fiscal year 2014 financial statements.

The Authority has not yet completed the various analyses required to estimate the financial
statement impact of these new pronouncements.

FINANCIAL SUPPORT

The Authority reported a deficit net position of $760,493,339 and $643,386,717 as of June 30, 2013
and 2012, respectively. The Authority’s business purpose will result in continued losses from
operation due to the disbursement of grant awards to help promote economic growth in the
Commonwealth. In addition, the Authority transferred part of its bond proceeds to the
Commonwealth Department of Environmental Protection and the Ben Franklin Technology
Development Authority in the current year and in prior years to the Commonwealth for the
Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund (MELF) program, which contributed to the deficit in net
position.

Through a service agreement with the Authority, the Commonwealth has pledged to seek annual
appropriations to pay the Authority’s annual debt service obligations. Therefore, factors listed
above do not raise doubt as to the Authority’s ability to meet obligations when due.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’'s deposits or
investments may not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit or investment policy
for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, due to the nature of the cash and cash
equivalents balances, there is no custodial credit risk.

Additionally, due to the short-term maturity of the cash equivalents, there is limited interest rate risk.
LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Authority provides loans, in accordance with its enabling legislation and statutory requirements
to spur economic development activity within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The loans have
amortization periods not to exceed 20 years and bear interest at rates ranging from 1% to 8%

depending on the nature of the loan and the Authority program from which the loan was funded.

The Authority, through the New Venture Capital Investment Program, provides loans to venture
capital partnerships for investments in Pennsylvania-related companies.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the outstanding balance of loans receivable were as follows:

Loan receivable

Deferred loan origination fees - net
Allowance for loan losses
Balance, end of year

Loan receivable

Deferred loan origination fees - net
Allowance for loan losses
Balance, end of year

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 is as

Page 14
2013
Current Long-term
Portion Portion Total
$ 17,407,845 $ 316,875,745 334,283,590
(18,116) (142,590) (160,706)
(348,157) (11,126,910) (11,475,067)
$ 17,041,572 § 305,606,245 322,647,817
2012
Current Long-term
Portion Portion Total
$ 18,524,920 $ 318,644,333 337,169,253
(2,367) (40,198) (42,565)
(370,498) (11,202,615) (11,573,113)
$ 18,152,055 $ 307,401,520 325,553,575

follows:
2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year $11,573,113 $ 6,584,747
Provision for loan losses (98,046) 4,988,366
Balance, end of year $ 11,475,067 $ 11,573,113

BONDS PAYABLE

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2013:

1735

Beginning Due Within
Balance Additions Deductions Ending Balance One Year
Economic
revenue bonds $ 1,387,990,000 $ 330,000,000 $ (50,210,000) $ 1,667,780,000 $ 55,870,000
Bond premium 7,766,941 40,376,278 (971,741) 47,171,478 -
Bond discount (1,082,496) - 57,938 (1,024,558) -
Total $ 1,394,674,445 $ 370,376,278 $ (51,123,803) $ 1,713,926,920  $ 55,870,000
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)
Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Beginning Due Within

Balance Additions Deductions Ending Balance One Year
Economic
revenue bonds $ 1,427,275,000 - $ (39,285,000) $ 1,387,990,000 $ 50,210,000
Bond premium 8,200,123 - (433,182) 7,766,941 -
Bond discount (1,140,436) - 57,940 (1,082,496) -
Total $ 1,434,334687  $ - $ (39,660,242) $ 1,394,674,445 $50,210,000
2013 2012

Series 2013 Revenue Bonds, issued $75,000,000 fixed
rate, taxable revenue bonds, Series A-1 and $48,000,000,
fixed rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series A-2 at
0.545% - 5.0%, interest payable semi-annually and
principle payable annually through June 1, 2033

Series 2013 Revenue Bonds, issued $207,000,000 fixed
rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series B at 2% - 5%,
interest payable semi-annually and principle payable
annually through June 1,2042

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds, issued $53,080,000 fixed
rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series C-1 and
$96,920,000, fixed rate, federal taxable revenue bonds,
Series C-2 at 2% - 3.4%, interest payable semi-annually
and principle payable annually through June 1, 2040.

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,000,000 fixed
rate, federal taxable revenue bonds, Series A and
$80,000,000 fixed rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series
B at .93% - 5.5%, interest payable semi-annually and
principal payable annually through May 1, 2039.

Series 2009 Revenue Bonds, issued $400,000,000 fixed
rate, federally taxable revenue bonds, Series D at 3.4% -
5.1%, interest payable semi-annually and principal
payable annually through May 1, 2039.

Series 2009 Revenue Bonds, issued $50,000,000 fixed
rate, federal taxable revenue bonds, Series A and
$50,000,000 fixed rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds, Series
B at 3.0% - 6.4%, interest payable semi-annually and
principal payable annually through June 1,2031.

$ 123,000,000

207,000,000

$ 142,200,000

$ 129,940,000

$ 390,780,000

$ 91,345,000
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

2013

Page 16

2012

Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series A at 3.1% - 5.2%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through June 1, 2027. $ 155,160,000 $

Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $187,500,000 fixed rate,
federally taxable revenue bonds, Series C at 4.9% - 5.2%,
interest payable semi-annually and principal payable annually
through June 1, 2026. $ 145,915,000 $

Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, issued $45,000,000 fixed rate,
tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $142,500,000 fixed
rate, federal taxable revenue bonds, Series B at 4.5% - 5.6%,
interest only payable semi-annually through June 1, 2026 and
principal payable annually through June 1, 2026.
$ 144,265,000 $

Series 2005 Revenue Bonds, issued $62,500,000 fixed rate,
tax exempt revenue bonds, Series A and $125,000,000 fixed
rate, federally taxable revenue bonds, Series B at 4.5% -
5.3%, interest payable semi-annually and principal payable
annually through June 1, 2025.
$ 138,175,000 $

162,540,000

153,715,000

151,690,000

146,310,000

Total Bonds Payable - Principle $ 1,667,780,000 1,387,990,000
Less current portion (55,870,000) (50,210,000)
Unamortized bond premium 47,171,478 7,766,941
Unamortized bond discount (1,024,558) (1,082,496)

$ 1,658,056,920

1,344,464,445

Bond payable requirements subsequent to June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Principal
Maturities Interest
For the Years Ending June 30,
2014 $ 55,870,000 $ 92,016,458
2015 63,250,000 84,505,129
2016 65,890,000 81,737,217
2017 68,735,000 78,730,529
2018 71,850,000 75,451,419
2019-2023 415,140,000 318,228,516
2024-2028 396,820,000 203,503,214
2029-2033 252,990,000 119,607,249
2034-2038 188,745,000 58,038,540
2039-2042 88,490,000 9,131,496
Total $ 1,667,780,000 $ 1,120,949,767
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NOTE 6:

NOTICES

Page 17
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)
Bond payable requirements subsequent to June 30, 2012 are as follows:
Principal
Maturities Interest
For the Years Ended June 30,
2013 $ 50,210,000 $ 74,826,251
2014 52,290,000 72,954,021
2015 54,570,000 70,585,946
2016 57,025,000 68,054,367
2017 59,655,000 63,509,188
2018-2022 345,920,000 267,066,553
2023-2027 379,345,000 161,328,847
2028-2032 184,950,000 88,431,574
2033-2037 134,305,000 42,306,537
2038-2040 69,720,000 4,985,390
Total $ 1,387,990,000 $ 914,048,674

The 2013A Bonds were issued to provide additional funding for the Alternative Energy
Development Program established under the Alternative Energy Investment Act, and other Project
Costs for program-related administration, and to pay the costs of issuing the 2013A Bonds. The
bonds were issued at a premium of $7,900,243 and had issuance costs of $807,407. Specific
terms of the Bonds can be found in the previous tables.

The 2013B Bonds were issued to provide additional funds for grants to be used to fund water and
sewer projects, storm water projects, flood control projects and high hazard unsafe dam projects
(the “H20 Grant Program”) pursuant to the H20 PA Act, and other Project Costs for program-
related administration, and to pay the costs of issuing the 2013B Bonds. The bonds were issued at
a premium of $32,476,035 and had issuance costs of $1,250,134. Specific terms of the Bonds can
be found in the previous tables.

The Authority, with Commonwealth approval, issued the above noted revenue bonds to fund the
activities of the Authority. Repayments with respect to the revenue bonds are derived solely from
project revenues which are defined as annual appropriations and transfers by the Commonwealth
per the Official Statement. The Revenue Bonds described above are limited obligations of the
Authority and are considered non-recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to bondholders beyond
amounts received by the Authority from annual appropriations and transfers to the Authority by the
Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has not pledged its full faith and credit nor the taxing power
of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision for the payment of the Authority’'s Revenue Bonds
and the payments by the Commonwealth to the Authority are subject to annual appropriation and
transfers of funds for such purposes by the General Assembly and there is no assurance that such
funds will be appropriated in any fiscal year. Repayments of loans do not constitute project
revenues.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, through the
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED) and the Department of
Environmental Protection (DEP) to provide administrative and operational support services for the
Authority. The Authority owns no capital assets; the employees performing services for the
Authority are DCED employees. As such, under the Memorandum of Understanding, the Authority
reimburses DCED for services rendered by DCED employees to the Authority. During the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the services provided by DCED and DEP to the Authority
and recorded as Administrative/Operating expenses totaled $2,604,614 and $2,902,175,
respectively.
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COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY
(COMPONENT UNIT OF COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority received $119,534,974 and
$115,816,425, respectively, in transfers from the Commonwealth to pay debt services with respect
to Revenue Bonds. See Note 5 for details with respect to the Revenue Bonds.

The Authority also received $27,486,806 and $29,353,879 in gaming monies from the
Commonwealth to fund approved projects in select areas of the state in the fiscal years ended June
30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Authority transferred part of its bond proceeds to the Commonwealth Department of
Environment Protection and the Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority totaling
$20,000,000 and $9,000,000 for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

LINE OF CREDIT

In December 2009, the Authority entered into a secured line of credit with the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania Treasury Department, which, under a revolving credit agreement, is limited to
borrowings of $50,000,000. Under the revolving credit agreement, interest accrues on the
aggregate unpaid principle amount outstanding on the draws. The interest rate is the greater of the
rate of the United States Federal Funds Target Rate plus 75 basis points or the rate set by the
British Bankers Association for London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) for a six month term in
United States dollars plus 45 basis points. The interest rate is reset as of the 20" of each month.
The line of credit expired as of December 28, 2011, the Authority did not extend or obtain a new
line of credit.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Authority, through various economic development programs, provided loan guarantees as
follows:

2013 2012
First Industries loan guarantees $ 48,735,633 $ 47,625,633
Tax increment financing gaurantees 43,500,000 38,500,000
Second stage loan gaurantees 3,360,000 1,485,000
Venture capital gaurantees 197,500,000 197,500,000
Total Loan Gaurantees $ 293,095,633 $ 285,110,633

The Authority has been called upon, from time to time with respect to loan guarantees, to make
principal or interest payments on behalf of the ultimate borrowers. Accordingly, expenses totaling
$2,734,748 and $1,191,529, have been reported in the Authority’s financial statements for loan
guarantees as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Through various Authority loan and grant programs to promote economic development within the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the Authority has approved loans, and grants of $83,161,378 and
$229,487,944, respectively, which have not been disbursed as of June 30, 2013.
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Zelenkofske Axelrod LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Financing Authority
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the COMMONWEALTH
FINANCING AUTHORITY (“the AUTHORITY"), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
AUTHORITY’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 2, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the AUTHORITY's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on

compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any

other purpose.
A e Ll W44¢

ZELENKOFSKE AXELROD LLC

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
QOctober 2, 2013
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